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An E & F éngineer provides environmental oversight during | T
construction of the 67-turbine Bliss Wind Farm in western New York. f IR

Working Together, Finding Solutions”

Ecology and Environment, Inc., {"E & E” or "the Com-
pany”) is a broad-based environmental consulting firm
whose underlying philcscphy is to provide professional
services so that globally sustainable economic and
human development may proceed with minimum
negative envircnmental impact. The Company offers a
wide range of consulting services, including environ-
mental planning, management, sustainability, and
regulatory compliance support; pollution coentrol
engineering; and emergency preparedness. o providse
these services, E & F employs specialists in over 100
seéparate disciplines in the physical, biological, social,
and heaith sciences, plus all branches of engineering.
We operate from 23 U.S. offices, and have subsidiaries
and affiliates arcund the world with multi-lingual
capability.

The Company's traditional services include environmen-
tal audits; environmental impact assessments (FIAs);

Working Togetner, Finding Solutons™ 15 an £ & € service mark,

geographic information systems (GISs) and data
management; infrastructure planning; and terrestrial,
zgouatic, and marine surveys. In addition, we offer
expertise in air quality management and pollution
control; water supply and pollution control; public and
occupational health; industrial hygiene; archaeology
and cuttural resources; and neoise reduction. E & E
provides services related to homeland security that
include chemical, biciogical, and nuclear threat evalua-
ticn; countermeasure preparedness planning;
counterterrorist training; emergency response; event
recovery support; and public health impact evaluation.
Our environmental sustainability services include the
development of wind, solar, geothermal, and other
renewable energy resources, green building evalua-
tions, and software to help reduce single-occupancy
vehicle transportation, all of which are designed to
counteract contributions toward glcebal warming. All of
our services are availlable worldwide.

% The paper used for this annual report 18 100% recycled, 100% post-consumer waste, processed chipring free, manufactured with Green-” certified wind powet, FSC certified,

ancient forest fuendly and printed with soy-basad ks




To Our Shareholders

E & E's revenues for fiscal year 2007 were $103.5 million, up

6% from the $98.1 million we reported for fiscal year 2006. -

Net income for fiscal year 2007 was $3.1 million or $.73 per
share, compared to $2.6 million or $.62 per share for the
prior year. The Company's reported revenue for the fourth
quarter of fiscal year 2007 was $28.6 million, an increase of
23% from the $23.3 million we reported for the fourth
quarter of fiscal year 2006. Net income increased to $.16
per share for the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2007, up from
the $.14 per share we reported for the prior year. All
earnings-per-share figures reflect the effect of cur 5%
stock dividend payable August 1, 2007,

E & E's $5.4 million revenue increase in fiscal year 2007 was
attributable mainly to increases in work performed by our
majority-owned subsidiaries - Walsh Environmental and
E & E do Brasil. Walsh Envircnmental's revenues for fiscal
year 2007 were $24.4 million, an increase of 36% from the
$£17.9 miltion reported in fiscal year 2006. This increase
came primarity from its expanded activity in the energy and
mining sectors. Fiscal year 2007 revenues from E & E do
Brasil were $5.0 million, up $2.3 million or 85% over the
prior year, due mainly to increased work in the public and
private power industries. Offsetting these increases were
reduced project revenues from the U.S. Department of
Defense and from our contracts in the Middle East.

Financial Highlights

Fiscal year ending July 31

2007 2006 Change
Revenue ('000s) $103.490 $98,055 5.5%
Net income {'000s) 3,074 2,583 19.0%
Ne.t income per common share
from continuing operations 0.60 0.65 -7.7%
Net income per common share 0.73 062 17.7%
Cash dividends declared
per common share 0.34 0.33 3.0%

Weighted average common shares cutstanding
Basic 4,194,673 4,180,287 0.3%
Diluted 4,261,823 4,188,278 1.8%

Note: the 2006 figures have been restated 1o give retroactive effect
1o the 5% stock dividend declared by the Company in July 2007.

In January 2007, we sold E & E's interest in our Costa Rican
shrimp farm operation. After deducting costs of the sale, we
achieved an after-tax gain of approximately $553,000 or $.14
per share that is accounted for under “discontinued opera-
tions.” The Company recognized a tax benefit of $510,000 or
$.12 per share during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2007
due to the completion of Internal Revenue Service audits for
fiscal years 2004 through 2006.

Consolidated indirect costs increased $5.2 million during
fiscal year 2007 as a result of revenue growth in subsidiaries,
increased marketing and bid and proposal costs, and a more
normalized staff utilization subsequent to our completing
several projects related to hurricane recovery during fiscal
year 2006. The increase in marketing and bid and proposal
expense may be traced to our commitment to investing in
significant future opportunities in green programs and the
alternative and clean technology energy sectors.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2007, E & E recog-
nized a loss of $1.1 million {$146,000 after tax or $.03 per
share) to reflect the estimated reduction in the value of the
net assets of our Venezuelan subsidiary. This write-off was
necessary due to the continuing detericration in business
and political conditions in Venezuela and the conclusion that
we could no longer compete for contracts with the govern-
ment-owned oil company, which was our primary client.

For the past two years, £ & E has been working as the environmenital
consultant to the joint venture design and construction team for the

South Ferry Subway Terminal Structural Box construction project in
Manhatian’s Battery Fark.




E & E’s Role Expands in Supporting
Power Production and Transmission

The Company has become a major supglier of environ-
mental consulting services to the domestic alternative
energy industry. For example, during fiscal year 2007,
E & E and Walsh Envircnmental worked on several wind
energy projects, including a post-construction habitat
mitigation/manitoring plan and permitting for the
Cabazon Wind Project; branding and Web site develop-
ment for Third Planet Windpower, LLC; a third-party
environmental impact report for Montezuma Wind
Energy.; environmental support fer the Invenergy Wind
Energy Projectin California; site assessment/permitting
far the Greenlight Energy Wind Farm and Cedar Creek
Wind Farm in Colorado; and New York State
Environmental Quality Review Act (SECR) permit
support for the Plum Island Wind Project, and project
feasibility investigation for the Lake Erie Offshore Wind
Farm, both in New York. E & E conducted a permit
feasibility anatysis/environmentzl assessment (EA) for
the Happy Jack Wind Energy Facility in Wyoming;
performed an EA for the Roughrider Wind Energy Facility
in North Dakota; provided permit support for the Windy
Point Wind Energy Project and an envircnmental impact
statement (EIS) for the Windy Flats Wind Project in
Washingten State. We also conducted numercus wind
energy site characterizations in Texas for a multinational
energy company.

The Company Provides Sustainable
Energy Services Worldwide

Curtailing growth in oil consumption and carbon
emissions has become an important economic, politi-
cal, and environmental issue in the U.S A, and other
industrialized nations. The Energy Policy Act of 2005
requires that 7.5-billion gallons (28.4-billion liters) cf
biofuels enter the nation's fuel supply by 2012. This has
sparked accelerating investment in new production
facilities. E & E is penetrating the market by providing
the consulting services required by these plants. For
example, we performed Phase | environmental audits
and biological surveys, outlined the requirements for
Phase |l surveys, and prepared exemption permit
applications for the proposed construction of ethanal
and biodiesel production facilities in Boardman, Oregon.

In November 2006, E & E was commended by SUEZ
Energy North America for our role in preparing the
deepwater port (DWP) application for its proposed
Calypso offshore liquefied natural gas {(LNG)
facihty—located 8 miles {13 km) off the coast cf Fort
Lauderdale, Florida. The Calypso DWP will consist of
two permanently anchored, submersible buoys
designed to moor and unload conventional LNG carriers,
as well as specially designed ragasification vessels with
onboard vaporization equipment,

Under a master services agreement with the American
subsidiary of Petrélec Brasileiro, S.A.. the

An E & E specialist discusses a planned petroteum profect with an Ecuadorian
Amazontan community on behalf of Andes Petroleumn {Chinese National Oif
Development Company and Sinopec).

Brazilian national oil company, E & E made
progress on an EfA to support development of
the deepwater Cascade and Chinook oil fields,
located approximately 160 miles {257 km) off the
Louisiana coast. Qur subsidiaries, Gustavson
Associates and Walsh Peru, are providing
independent technical assistance to identify the
gight most-promising, new onshore blocks for
commercial development in Peru. Their work
involves exploratory wells, airborne gravity and
magnetic surveys, and the ccllection  and
interpretation of geochemical and seismic data.

E & E and our subsidiary, Gestion Ambiental
Consultores, S.A/Ecology and Environment, Inc.,
are assisting with an ElA—sponsored by
Codelcc, SUEZ Energy, and Gas Atacama—to
support LNG development at Port Mejillores in
northern Chile. The project will create a supply of
gas for existing and proposed power plants that
have been impacted by Argentinean gas
restrictions.




E & E Working on International Economic Development

and Environmental Sustainability

in December 2006, E & E successfully
completed a subcaontract te suppart the
necessary engineering and environ-
mentai field studies for road improve-
ments in Mozambigue's four northern
provinces. In addition to identifying
opportunities for improving the coun-
try's highways, our specialists
addressed issues of social justice and -
environmental sustainability. We tap- (

ped the fluency of the staff from our
Brazilian subsidiary, E & E do Brasil, as AN
well as our in-house Portuguese-
speaking specialists, in order to
execute this quick-turnaround project.

E & E do Brasil is performing a climate
change project as part of a social and
environmental site alternative analysis
for a large industnal facility in three
Brazilian states. In an effort to target
emission reduction, the client ?

requested that we incorporate “carbon
sequestration potential” in our
traditional social and environmental site
' alternative analysis. This methodology .
involves processes that remove carbon dioxide from the
atmosphere to help mitigate giobal warming. We expect
that this will become a very impartant factor in industrial
and government siting studies for the foreseeable
future, and are positioning all of E & E's resources to be
able to provide the state-of-the-art professional services
required to meet this growing demand.

E & E's Chinese operations received a boost recently due
to our wark for two major programs - one for the World
Bank and the other for the Asian Development Bank.
We are providing multivear technical design,
construction management, and training services for the
Sichuan Urban Development Project, which
encompasses sewerage and sanitation systems;
! sludge management facilities; and roads,
embankments, and water quality improvements in four
provincial cities. For the Shandong Hai River Basin
Poltution Control Project, we are providing multifaceted
support in the areas of sewerage, sludge management
facilities, river water quality monitoring. utility
management, financial and business planning, and
technical training.

Asian Development Bank meeting at a chemical plant in Wuhan City with our Chinese staff and
plant personnel. E & E is supporting Chinese efforts to modernize the production process by
reducing air and water pollution.

E & £ Recognized at the 2006 ESRI Conference

The Company was recognized for "S,bec.'él Achievement
in Geography ™ at the 15,000-attendee, 2006 ESR/
International User Conference, which acknowledged
GIS innovations empioying ESAI software. These include
our sward-winning, GreenRide® global ridesharing
solution, which is based on ESRI's Arc\Web services
platform, our development and large-scale deployment
of extended ESAI portable device, internet mapping,
and database system functionality for nationwide
anvironmental mapping, monitoring, and assessrnent in
Saudi Arabia and Kuwait' and several other creative
solutions that are addressing client needs.

GreenRide” s 8 rogustered £ & E tradermark.




Government Work Continues for Federal, State, and Local Agencies

E & E information technology {IT) specialists worked at
the U.S. Army's Fort Hood in Texas for two years to
develop an innovative Web-based planning tool known
as the Comprehensive Army Master Planning System
{CAMPS). This tool makes planning information readily
accessible to support day-to-day master planning and
public works tasks being implemented within a
dynamic, military mission environment. The program
was described in the U.S. Army's January/February 2007
Fublic Works (3igest .
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Interior to appraise over 300,000 acres (121,406 hect-
ares) of surface and oil and gas rights fora proposed land
and mineral exchange between the U.S. Government
and Doyon, LLC, the native Alaskan corporation that
owns the property rights within the Yukon Flats National
Wildlife Refuge in Alaska's northeast guadrant.

n March 2007, E & E received a $2.5-million, 18-month
extension to our contract with the Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality te support the agency’s Dry
Cleaner Rerediztion Program. Our work
consists of site investigations and subsurface
evaluations 1o determine the nature and extent
of chlorinated solvent contamination using
concentrations/criteria established by the Texas
Risk Reduction Program.

In April 2007, the New York State Department of
Transportation awarded a new contracttoE& E
to develop the conceptual designs for the
compensatory mitigation being conducted
along Manstield Creek in Cattaraugus County. as
part of Segment 6 of our ongoing U.S. Route 219
project. We also began tc develop a contin-
gency response plan for New York City's
Department of Environmental Protection that
will enable it to effectively respond to a water
supply emergency and ensure the continued
delivery of potable water to the nation's largest

city. We completed a yearlong study for the
. ;2‘ Town of Cortlandt, New York, to identify
measures to enhance the Indian Point Nuclear

£ & £ scientist surveying bank stahilization measures during construction as part
of the McKinstry Creek stream restoration project.

Work progressed on E & E's multi-year, basic ordering
agreerment with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Tulsa
District, Completed task orders include a study in
southern Louisiana to determine compliance with the Oil
Pollution Act of 1990 and assessments in New Mexico's
Pinos Altos Mining District. We began work on the
Cochiti Phase Il site assessment in New Mexice. We
completed several assignments under our fourth
contract with the Corps' Kansas City District; continued
to monitor the cleanup of polychlarinated hiphenyls
{PCBs) in the upper Hudson River for the Corps' Kansas
City District, on behalf of EPA Region 2; and completed
several tasks at the Artesia Federal Law Enforcement
Training Center for the Corps’ Savannah District,

E & E's subsidiary, GQustavson Associates, recently
signed a contract with the U.S. Department of the

Facility Evacuation Plan. The study focused on
measures that town residents and local stake-
holders could use in the event of a radiological or
other emergency incident at the local nuclear power
plant.

In other projects related to public health, E & E per-
formed a statewide health rescurces capability assess-
ment for the Ohio Hospital Association and a statewide
burn/trauma capacity assessment for the Ohio
Department of Health. We developed a hospital decon-
tamination training program that included creation of a
Web-based training portal, as well as the delivery of
“hands on” training for the staffs of 34 hospitals on
behalf of the Hospital Council of Northwest Ohio. In
New York, E & E worked with Westchester County's
health and emergency services departments to design,
develop, and implement a program to provide direct
mass prophylaxis treatment supplies to first responders
for public health and safety incidents.




Carbon Footprints Being Reduced
through GreenRide® Ridesharing

During the past year. considerable strides have been
made by the E & E team that is marketing GreenRide®,
E & E's proprietary program to encourage the use of
cther than single-occupancy automobiles for
commuting and other transportation needs. £ & E was
recently awarded a grant from the New York State
Energy Research and Development Authority
(NYSERDA) to develop GreenRide® FlexT™, a new
flexible transportation management system that
provides mokbility services to the disabled, elderly, and
poor. We also installed major GreenRide” Metropolitan
Edition systems for public use in Kansas City, Missouri;
Lawrence, Kansas; Tulsa, Oklahoma; San Antonio and
Austin, Texas; and Reno, Nevada. We recently received
an order from PACE, the regional transportation system
serving Chicago's six suburban counties, for a regional
rideshare software system and related services. We
installed GreenRide® Campus Edition systems at the
University of Florida in Gainesville, University of
Arkansas, Oklahoma State University, the University of
Michigan in Ann Arbor, and Santa Barbara City College in
California.  In addition, the Company rolled out its
GreenRide” Employer Edition with sales to a major
electronic ¢omponent manufacturer, a California
construction company, several health maintenance
organizations, the City of Dallas, Texas, and the Lower
Colorado River Authority (for their own employees).

E & E sells this program by subscription, subject to
pericdic renewal, thereby providing continucus revenue
stream opportunities from existing clients.

Best Workplace for Commuters

£ & F's Dalfas and San Francisco offices joined the ranks of
Best Workplace for Commuters (BWC) based on their
initiatives to provide employees with environmentally friendly
alternatives for commuting to work, BWC is a public-private
partnership between the (.S, Environmental Protection
Agency (ERA), the U S. Department of Transportation (DOT),
and participating employers aimed at reducing poltution,
commuting costs, and traffic congestion. The program
encourages employers to meet the National Standard of
Excellence as established under the direction of EFA and
DOT. E & E's Buffalo and Houston offices were previously
awarded BWC desfignations by EPA/DOT.

American Industry Becoming Serious
about Environmental Sustainability

In an ironic twist since fast year's annual report, there is
evidence that business, rather than our federal govern-
ment, is now leading domestic efforts to establish
meaningful programs that reduce the environmenial
“footprint” of various economic entities.  Similar trends
have been observed in many other countries. Certainiy,
many business executives have come tc realize that
sustainable environmental concerns can provide new
profit-making cpportunities, not just new avenues for
their corporations to incur added expense. E & E is well
positioned to thrive in this changing environment.

4 >
Gerhard J. Neumaier,

/: Chairman and President

Under the Formerly Utilized Sites Remedial Acition Program (FUSRAP),
the Company investigated poteniial radionuckide contamination, using
a downhole gamma survey, at the Sylvania site located in New York's
Nassau County.




Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The financial statements presented below have been reslated to give retroactive effect 1o the 5% steck dividend declared by the Company in
July 2007. See note No. 9 1o the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Year ended July 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
{In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Operating data:
Revenues $ 103,490 $ 98,055 $  91.357 $ 110,823 $ 116,214
Income {loss) from operations 4,130 5,659 (1,970) 5.248 7.679
income (loss) from centinuing operations before
income taxes and minority interest 4,578 h,709 {2,118} 6,252 7.631
Net inceme {loss) from continuing operations $ 2,506 $ 2,723 $  (1.424) 3 2,632 $ 3,790
Net income {loss) from discontinued operations 568 (140 (163) (231 {4,992}
Net income {loss) 3 3.074 $ 2.583 $ {1,687) 3 2,401 $ (1,202
Net income {loss) per common share: basic

Continuing operations 3 0.60 3 0.65 3 (0.34) 3 0.63 3 0.0

Discontinued operations 013 (0.03) {0.04) (0.06) {1.19)
Net income (less) per commen share: basic 3 0.73 3 0.62 $ {0.38) 3 0.57 3 10.29)
Net income {loss) per common share: diluted

Continuing operations % 059 S 0.65 $ (0.34) $ 0.62 % 0.90

Discontinued operations 0.13 (0.03) (0.04) {0.05) {1.19)
Net income {loss) per common share: diluted $ 0.72 S 0.62 $ (0.38) 3 0.57 s {0.29)
Cash dividends declared per common share: ’
Basic and Diluted $ 0.34 S 0.33 $ 0.32 $ 032 3 031
Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic 4,194,673 4,180,287 4,160,834 4,185,002 4,196,636

Diluted 4,261,623 4,188,278 4,160,834 4,243,304 4,196,636

Year ended July 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
{In thousands, except per share amountis)

Balance sheet data:
Working capital $34,313 § 28,306 $28373 $27.983 $27.702
Total assets 71,208 69,152 57,305 682,504 76,382
Leng-term debt 385 342 328 336 137
Shareholders' eguity 40,913 37.627 36,284 39,383 38,378
Book value per share:

Basic S 978 $ 9.00 $ 872 S 94 g 914

Diluted $ 9860 $ 898 $ B72 $ 9.28 $ 914




Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Operating activities provided $5.6 million of cash during
fiscal year 2007, compared to $8.8 million of cash reported
in the prior year. Minority interest increased $1.9 million
during fiscal year 2007 due tc increased profits from Walsh
Environmental and its subsidiaries located in Peru and
Ecuador. Accounts payable increased $.9 million during
tiscal year 2007 mainly due to increases in work performed
by the Ccmpany's majority owned subsidiaries Walsh
Envircnmental and E & E do Brasil and an increase in
subcontract costs within the parent company during July
2007. The Company reported a write-off of $1.1 million in
the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2007 ta reflect the estimated
reduction in the value cf the net assets of their Venezuelan
subsidiary. Income taxes receivable increased $1.4 million
and income taxes payable decreased $.9 millien during fiscal
year 2007 mainly due to the tax benefits recognized on the
write-off of the investment in Venezuela and a reduction in
the Company's estimated tax liabilities as a result of the
completion of audits. Other accrued ligbilities decreased
$1.7 million during fiscal year 2007 due 1o a decrease in
billings in excess over revenue during the year. The
Company purchased $1.3 million of new capital equipment
compared to depreciation charges of $1.4 million during
fiscal year 2007.

Financing activities consumed $3.5 million of cash during
fiscal year 2007. The Board of Directors declared dividends
of approximately $1.5 million or $.36 per share ($.34 per
share afier 5% stock dividend) during fiscal year 2007. The
Company reported $769,000 in distributions to minority
partners during the year. In the fourth quarter of fiscal year
2007, the Company repurchased $1.1 million of treasury
stock, primarily due to the buying back of 81,000 shares of
company stock held by the Company's Defined Centribution
Plar. Long-term debt and capital lease obligations increased
$192,000 mainly due to additional loans and capital leases
held by the Walsh Environmental subsidiary, Walsh Peru.

Contractual Obligations

The Company maintains an unsecured line of credit of $20.0
million with a bank at 4% below the prevailihg prime rate.
A second line of credit is available at another bank for up to
$13.5 million, exclusively for letters of credit. There were
two additional lines of credit established during fiscal year
2007. The Company established one for up to $5.0 million
exclusively for tetters of credit. Another line of credit was
established at Walsh Environmental for up to $750,000
exclusively for working capital and letters of credit, The
Company has outstanding letters of credit (LOC's} at July 31,
2007 in the amount of $1.3 millicn. These LOC's were
obtained to secure advance payments and performance
guarantees, primarily for contracts in the Middle East. After
LOC's, there are no cutstanding barrowings under the lines
of credit and there is $38.0 million of line still available at
July 31, 2007. There are no significant additional working
capital requirements pending at July 31, 2007, The
Company helieves that cash flows from operations and
borrowings against the line of credit will be sufficient to
cover all working capital reguirements for at least the next
twelve months and the foreseeable future.

Results of Operations

Revenue

Fiscal Year 2007 vs 2006

Revenue for fiscal year 2007 was $103.4 millicn, an increase
of 5% over the revenue reported in fiscal year 2006. The
increase was mainly attributable to increases in waork
performed by E & E's majority owned subsidiaries Walsh
Environmental and E & E do Brasil. Revenues from Walsh
Environmental were $24.4 million for fiscal year 2007, an
increase of 36% from the $17.9 million reported in fiscal year
2006. The increase in Walsh Environmental revenues was
mainly attributable to increased activity in its energy and
mining secters. Revenues from E & E do Brasil were $5.0
million for fiscal year 2007, an increase of $2.3 million or
85% over the prior year due mainly to increased work in the
public and private power industries. The Company's Chilean
subsidiary. Gestion Ambiental Consultores (GAC), reported

Payments due by period

Less than 1-3 3-5 More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year years years 5 years
Long-Term Debt Obligations % 477,466 $ 211,660 $ 144,629 $ 59,572 $ 81,425
Capital Lease Obligations 241,033 121,669 102.981 16,433 —
Operating Lease Obligations " 6,828.406 2.324,755 2,614,935 1,360,791 527.925
Total $7.546,905 $2,657,984 $2,862,545 $1,437,026 $ 589,350

n Reprasents rents for office and warshouse fucilities




revenues of $2.9 million during fiscal year 2007, an increase
of $.9 million from the $2.0 million reported in fiscal year
2006. The increase in GAC revenues was due to increased
activity in its gas and mining sectors. During fiscal year
2007, revenues from state clients of the parent company
increased $.9 million from the $23.1 million reported during
the prior year. The increase in state revenue was mainly
attributable to an increase in work levels on contracts in New
York and Washington. Offsetting these increases ior fiscal
year 2007 were reduced revenues from work performed on
contracts in the Middle East and from various United States
Federal government agencies, primarily the United Siates
Department of Defense clients (DOD). Revenue from DOD
clients of the parent company decreased $3.7 million during
fiscal year 2007 due to a2 $10.6 million decrease in work
performed on contracts asscciated with the relief efforts for
the Gulf Coast hurricanes. The Company continues 1o work
in the Gulf Coast Region on projects to restore the wetlands
that were damaged by the hurricanes.

The Company reporied an increase of $5.3 million in revenue
during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2007 attributable to
increases in revenue from state clients of the parent
company, Walsh Envircnmental and E & E do Brasil.
Revenues from state clients were $7.1 million, a 37%
increase from the $5.2 million reported in the fourth quarter
of fiscal year 2006. The increase in state revenue was
mainly attributable to an increase in work performed on
contracts in New York. Walsh Environmental reported
revenues of $6.8 mitlion for the fourth quarter of fiscal year
2007, an increase of $2.0 million over the fourth quarter of
the prior year. E & E do Brasil reported revenues of $1.6
million for the fourth guarter of fiscal year 2007, a 129%
increase from the $.7 million reported in the fourth quarter of
fiscal year 2006.

Fiscal Year 2006 vs 2005

Revenue for fiscal year 2006 was $88.1 million, up 7% from
the $91.4 million reported in fisca!l year 2005. The increase
in revenue was attributable to increases in work with the
United States Department of Defense {DOD) and commercial
clients as well as from Walsh Environmental, one of its
subsidiaries. Revenue from DOD clients was $19.0 million
for fiscal year 2008, an increase of 56% from the $12.2
million repeorted in the prior year. The increase in DOD
revenues was due to work performed on contracts
associated with the relief efforis for hurricanes Katrina and
Rita. These contracts contributed $11.6 million in revenue
during fiscal year 2006. Revenues from commercial clients
were $17.8 million during fiscal year 2008, an increase of
$5.3 million from $12.5 million reported in fiscal year 2005.
The increase in commercial revenues was attributable to
increased activity on energy contracts related to LNG
(Liquefied Natural Gas) and wind power. Walsh
Environmental reported revenues of $16.8 milhion during
fiscal year 2006, up 22% from the $13.8 million reported in
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the prior year. The increase in Walsh was mainly atiributable
to increased activity in the energy fields related to mineral
reserve and exploration analysis Revenues from E & E do
Brasil, one of the Company's subsidiaries, were $2.7 million
during fiscat vear 2006, an increase of 29% from $2.1 million
reparted in fiscal year 2005. Offsetting these increases were
decreases in revenues from the contracts in Saudi Arabia
and Kuwait. These centracts in the Middle East decreased
$6.8 million or 59%. The contracts in Saudi Arabia are 100%
complete and the contracts in Kuwait are substantially
complete with only minor amounts of laboratory work
continuing through December 2006. Revenues attributable
to the Company's Superfund Technical Assessment and
Respense Team (START) contracts decreased $3.5 million
during the fiscal year 2006. This decrease was due to the
completion of the contracts in EPA Region Il in June 2005
and EPA Region X in December 2005. An extension was
exercised on the EPA Region IX contract which extended its
work through the middle of April 2006, however at a
significantly reduced level. The Company was awarded a
new START contract in EPA Region X in December 20056.

The increase in revenues for the fourth quarter of fiscal year
2006 was atiributable to increases from commercial clients
as well as Walsh Environmenial. Revenues from commercial
clientts for the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006 were $4.6
million, a 31% increase from the $3.6 million reported in the
fourth quarter of fiscal year 2005. Walsh Environmental
reported net income of $4.8 million for the fourth quarter of
fiscal year 20086, an increase of $0.7 milliocn over the fourth
quarter of the prior year. Offsetting these increases were
decreases in revenues from state clients as well as
decreases in wark an the Company's START contracts.
Revenues from state clients for the fourth quarter of fiscal
year 2006 decreased $1.2 million or 19% from the $6.4
millicn reparted in the fourth quarter of fiscal vear 2005, The
decrease in state revenues was attributable to decreased
work levels on contracts in New York and Oregon. Revenues
attributable to the Company's START contracts decreased
$1.0 million during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006.

Income From Continuing Operations Before Income
Taxes and Minority Interest

Fiscal Year 2007 vs 2006

The Company's income from continuing cperations before
income taxes and minonty interest was $4.6 million for fiscal
year 2007, down 19% from the $5.7 million reperted in fiscal
year 2006. Gross margins increased during fiscal year 2007
due to an increase in higher margin work at the parent
company and increased revenue at Walsh Environmental.
Consolidated indirect costs increased $5.2 million during
fiscal year 2007 as a result of revenue growth in subsidiaries,
increased marketing and bid and proposal costs, and a more
normalized staff utilization subsequent to the completicn of
the hurricane work in fiscal year 2006. Marketing and bid




and proposal costs were $10.7 million for fiscal year 2007,
an increase of $1.4 millien from the $3.3 million reported in
the prior year. The increase in marketing and bid and
proposal work was due to an investment in significant future
cpportunities in the alternative and clean technology energy
sectors. The Company continues 10 iIncrease business
development costs worldwide to capitalize on the global
demands for energy and environmental infrastructure
improvements in concert with heightened concerns over
global warming. A write-off of $1.71 million {$146,000 after
tax or $.03 per share} was recognized in the fourth quarter of
fiscal year 2007 to reflect the estimated reduction in the
value of the net assets of the Company's Venezuelan
subsidiary. This write-off was necessary due to a continuing
deterioration in business and political conditions in
Venezuela and the conclusion that the Company could no
longer compete for contracts with its primary client, the
government owned oil company. interest income was
$543,000 for fiscal year 2007, up 151% from the $216,000
reported during the prior year. The increase in interest
income is consistent with the increased cash generated by
the Company from the completion of major projects and the
sale of the shrimp farm.

The Company's loss from continuing operaticns before
income taxes and minority interest was $175,000 for the
fourth guarter of fiscal year 2007, down $1.7 million from the
$1.5 millicn income reported in the fourth quarter of fiscal
year 2006. The write-off of the Company's Venezuglan
subsidiary in the amount of $1.1 million {($146,000 after tax
or $.03 per share} reduced income in the fourth quarter of
fiscal year 2007. interest income increased $62,000 from
the $82,000 reported during the fourth quarter of fiscal year
2006. Consolidated indirect costs increased $2.0 million
during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2007 as a result of a
decrease in staff utilization at the parent company, an
increase in marketing and bid and proposal costs, and costs
associated with the continued revenue growth of Walsh
Environmental and E & E do Brasil. Marketing and bid and
proposal costs were $2.9 million for the fourth quarter of
fiscal year 2007, up 26% from the $2.3 million repoarted in
the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006.

Fiscal Year 2006 vs 2005

The Company's income from continuing operations before
income taxes and minority interest for fiscal year 2006 was
$5.7 million, compared to the $2.1 million loss reperted in
the prior year. This increase was mainly due to increased
revenues, increased staff utilization and the impairment of
the Analytical Services Center (ASC) in fiscal year 2005, The
increase in revenues and staff utilization were mainly
attributable to an increase in work perfermed on contracts
associated with the relief efforts for hurricanes Katrina and
Rita as well as increased work in the Company's energy
markets. As of the end of fiscal year 2006, the Company

had completed the majority of the work on the relief effort
contracts. The parent company's employee utilization
increased 6% during fiscal year 2006, compared to fiscal
year 2005. Management controlled consolidated indirect .
costs and maintained them at a level consistent with fiscal
year 2005. Administrative and indirect costs were $24.9
million, an increase of $1.1 million from the $23.8 million
reported during the prior year. The increase in administrative
and indirect costs was mainly attributable to an increase in
consolidated costs from Walsh Environmental asseciated
with their increased staffing and revenues, as well as the
implementation of a bonus plan for senior management.
Marketing and related costs for fiscal year 2006 were $9.3
million, a decrease of $1.0 million from the $10.3 million
reported during fiscal year 2005. The decrease in marketing
and related costs was a result of the closing of the ASC in
fiscal year 2005 and increased utilization of technical staff on
direct project work. The Company recorded a $2.8 millicn
pretax impairment loss on the ASC during the fiscal year
2005. Interest income increased $174,000 from the $42,000
reported during fiscal year 2005. This increase was a result
of interest earned on cash generated by cperations.

The Company's income from continuing operations before
income taxes and minority interest for the fourth quarter of
fiscal year 2006 was $1.5 million, compared to the $1.1
million of income reported in the fourth quarter of the prior
year. Administrative and indirect costs were $6.5 million, an
increase of $1.1 million from the $5.4 millien reported during
the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2005. The increase in
administrative and indirect costs was a result of the
completion of the contracts associated with hurricanes
Katrina and Rita, an overall increase in the Company's
technical staff, and an increase in consolidated costs from
Walsh Environmental associated with their increased staffing
and revenues. Marketing and related costs decreased
$173,000 during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006.
Interest income increased $72,000 from the $10,000
reported during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2005.

Discontinued Operations

On January 9, 2007 the Company sold its interest in the
shrimp farm in Costa Rica to the Reozen Group for
$2,500,000 in cash. When the farm was closed in fiscal year
2003, the Company recerded an impairment charge. The
previously unrecognized foreign translaticn loss in the
amount of approximately $1.5 million has been accounted
for in the computation of the current year gain on sale. There
was a pretax gain on the sale of the farm of approximately
$960,000 after deducting costs of the sale. This gain is
included in the accompanying financial statements under
discontinued cperations.
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Write-off of Investment in Venezuela

Due to a continuing deterioration in business and political
conditions in Venezuela and the conclusion that, effective in
June 2007, E & E’s Venszuelan subsidiary would no longer
be able to compete for contracts with its primary client, the
government owned oil company, the Company evaluated its
investment in its Venezuelan subsidiary for possible write-
off. The Company ultimately made a decision to clese its
subsidiary in Venezuela effective as soon as possible. This
final decision was made by the president of E & E on
September 12, 2007. The cessation of business in Venezuela
will result in termination benefits for employees and other
charges. Termination costs will be estimated according (o
in-country regulations. The Company recognized a write-off
of $1.1 million {$148.000 after tax or $.03 per share) in the
fourth quarter of fiscal year 2007 to reflect the estimated
reduction in the value of the net assets of the Company's
Venezuelan subsidiary. The tax benefit of the write-off was
increased due to the excess of the tax basis over the
accounting basis in the subsidiary, largely attributable to the
net losses of the subsidiary which were previously
recognized for financial reporting purposes, without U.S.
income tax henefit.

income Taxes

The estimated effective tax rate for fiscal year 2007 was
2.3%, down from the 37.6% reported {or fiscal year 2008.
This is primarily due to the reversal of tax reserves due to
settlement of income tax audits, tax benefits on the write-off
of the investment in Venezuela, increases in the percentage
of total income (from "pass-through" entities) attributable to
mincrity partners, and the effect of lower tax rates in South
America relative to the U.S.

The effective tax rate for fiscal year 2006 has decreased
from (80.9%) to 37.6% due to a re-evaluation of tax
contingencies, a reduction in the benefit from the Extra-
territorial Income Exclusion (EIE), and a decrease in the
percentage of total income attributable to minority partners
in 2006.

American Jobs Creation Act of 2004

In October 2004, Congress passed, and the President signed
into law, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 {the "Act”).
Some key provisions of the act affecting the Company were
the repeal of the United States export tax incentive known as
the EIE and the implementation of a domestic manufacturing
deduction. The EIE is phased out over the calendar vears
2005 and 2006 with an exemption for hinding contracts with
unrelated persons entered intc befere September 18, 2003.
These phase-out provisions will allow the Company to
maintain an EIE deduction at a reduced amount through
fiscal year 2007. The Company will accrue some benefits
from the domestic manufacturing deducticn, although such

henefits are not material. Under the Act's repatriation
provisions, the Company repatriated approximately $62,000
and $77,000 during fiscal years 2007 and 20086, respectively.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 108, "Considering the Effects of Pricr Year
Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current
Year Financial Statements.” SAB 108 was issued in order to
eliminate the diversity of practice surrounding how public
companies quantify financial statement misstatements.

Traditionally, there have been two widely-recognized
rmethods for quantifying the effects of financial statement
misstatements: the “rcll-over” method and the "ron curtain”
method. The roll-over method focuses primarily on the
impact of a misstatement of the income statement-including
the reversing effect of prior year misstatements—-but its use
can lead to the accumulation of misstatements in the
balance sheet. The iron-curtain method, on the other hand,
focuses primarily on the effect of correcting the pericd-end
halance sheet with less emphasis on the reversing effects of
prior year errors on the income statement. Prior to August 1,
2006, the Company utilized the roll-over method for
quantifyingj identified financial statement misstatements.

In SAB 108, the SEC staff established an approach that
requires quantification of financial statement misstatements
hased on the effects of the misstatements on each of the
company's financial statements and the related financial
statement disclosures. This model is commonly referred o
as a 'dual approach" because it requires quantification of
errors under both the iron curtain and the roll-over methods.

SAB 108 permits public companies te initially apply its
provisions either by (i} restating prior financial staterments as
if the "dual approach” had always been used or {ii) recording
the cumulative effect of initially applying the "dual approach”
as adjustments to the carrying values of assets and liabilities
as of August 1, 2006 with an offsetting adjustment recorded
10 the opening balance of retained earnings.

The Company elected to record the effects of applying SAB
108 using the "cumulative effect” transition method and
recorded an adjustment tc reduce retained earnings by
$302,000 in the first quarter of fiscal year 2007. However,
upon subsequent review, the Company concluded that
$326,357 of this entry could have been corrected by
recording other balance sheet only adjustments, not
affecting retained earnings. This correction would result in a
net increase in retained earnings of $24,357 and can no
longer be deemed material encugh to be recorded as a
cumulative effect adjustment. Therefore, the Company has
reversed the cumulative etfect adjustment recorded in the
first quarter and reflected the remaining $24,357 as
corrections to cost of cperations and minority interest
expense,




In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, an interpretation of
SFAS 109. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes and reduces the diversity in current practice
associated with the financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken
in a tax return by defining a "more-likely-than-not” threshold
regarding the sustainability of the position. The Company is
required to adopt FIN 48 in the fiscal year ended July 31,
2008. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of FIN
48 on its financial statements and anticipates the impact to
be immaterial.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157,
“Fair Value Measurement” (FAS 157}, which established a
framework for measuring fair value under generally accepted
accounting principles and expands disclosure about fair
value measurements, FAS 157 is effective for financial
statements issuved with fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. The Company is assessing the impact
that the adoption of FAS 157 will have on its financial
statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 159, "The
Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities” {(FAS 159). The fair value option established by
FAS 159 permits entities to choose to measure eligible items
at fair value at specified election dates. Unrealized gains and
iosses on items for which the fair value option has been
elected are reperted in earnings at each subsequent
reporting date. FAS 159 is effective as of the beginning of an
entity's first fiscal year that begins after Novernber 15, 2007.
The Company is currently assessing the impact of FAS 159
on its financial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

Management's discussion and analysis of financial condition
and results of operations discuss the Company's
consolidated financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The preparation
of these statements requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an
ongoing basis, management evaluales its estimates and
judgments, including those related to revenue recognition,
allowance for doubtful accounts, income taxes, impairment
of long-lived assets and contingencies. Management bases
its estimates and judgments con historical experience and on
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates under
different assumptions or conditions.

Revenue Recognition

The Company's revenues are derived primarily from the
orofessional and technical services perfermed by its
employees or, in certain cases, by subcontractors engaged
to perform on under contracts we enter inta with our clients.
The revenues recegnized, therefore, are derived from our
ability to charge clients for those services under the
contracts,

The Company employs three major types of contracts: "cost-
plus contracts,” “fixed-price contracts” and “time-and-
materials contracts.” Within each of the major contract types
are variations on the basic contract mechanism. Fixed-price
contracts generally present the highest level of financial and
performance risk, but often also provide the highest
potential financial returns. Cost-plus contracts present a
lower risk, but generally provide lower returns and often
inctude more onercus terms and conditions. Time-and-
materials contracts generally represent the time spent by our
professional staff at stated or negotiated billing rates.

Fixed price contracts are accounted for on the "percentage-
of-completion” method, wherein revenue is recognized as
project progress cceurs. Time and material contracts are
accounted for over the period of perfermance, in proportion
to the costs of performance, predominately based on labor
hours incurred. If an estimate of costs at completion on any
contract indicates that a loss wiil be incurred, the entire
estimated loss is charged (o operations in the pericd the
loss becomes evident.

The use of the percentage-of-completion revenue
recognition method requires the use of estimates and
judgment regarding the project's expected revenues, costs
and the extent of progress towards completion. The
Company has a history of making reasonably dependable
estimates of the extent of progress towards compietion,
contract revenue and contract completicn costs. However,
due to uncertainties inherent in the estimation process, it is
possibie that completion costs may vary from estimates.

Most of our percentage-cof-completion projects follow a
method which approximates the “cost-to-cost” method of
determining the percentage of completion. Under the cost-
to-cost method, we make periodic estimates of our progress
towards project completion by analyzing costs incurred to
date, plus an estimate of the amount of costs that we expect
to incur until the completion of the project. Revenue is then
calculated on a cumulative basis (project-to-date} as the total
contract value multiplied by the current percentage-of-
completion. The revenue for the current period is calculated
as cumulative revenues less project revenues already
recognized. The recoegnition of revenues and profit is
dependent upon the accuracy of a variety of estimates.

Such estimates are based on varicus judgments we make
with respect to those factors and are difficult to accurately
determine until the project is significantly underway.
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For some contracts, using the cost-to-cost method in
estimating percentage-cf-completion may oversiate the
progress on the project. For projects where the cost-to-cost
method does not appropriately reflect the progress on the
projects, we use alternative methods such as actual labor
hours, for measuring pregress on the project and recognize
revenue accordingly. For instance, in a project where a large
amount of equipment is purchased or an extensive amount
of mabilization is involved, including these costs in
calculating the percentage-of-completion may cverstate the
actual progress on the project. For these types of projects,
actual labor hours spent on the project may be a more
appropriate measure of the progress on the project.

The Company's contracts with the U.S. government contain
provisions requiring comptiance with the FAR and the CAS.
These regulations are generally applicable to all of the
Company's federal government contracts and are partially or
fully incerporated in many local and state agency contracts.
They limit the recovery of certain specified indirect costs on
contracts subject to the FAR. Cost-plus contracts covered by
the FAR provide for upward or downward adjustments if
actual recoverable costs differ from the estimate billed. Most
of cur federal government contracts are subject 10
termination at the convenience of the client. Contracts
typically provide for reimbursement of costs incurred and
payment of fees earned through the date of such
termination.

Federal government contracts are subject to the FAR and
some state and local governmental agencies require audits,
which are performed for the most part by the EPA Office of
Inspector General (EPAQIG). The EPACIG audits averhead
rates. cost proposals, incurred government contract costs,
and internal control systems. During the course of its audits,
the EPADIG may question incurred costs if it believes we
have accounted for such costs in a manner inconsistent with
the requirements of the FAR or CAS and recommend that our
U.5. government financial administrative contracting officer
disallow such costs. Historically, we have not experienced
significant disallowed costs as a result of such audits.
However, we can provide no assurance that the EPAQIG
audits will not result in material disallowances of incurred
costs in the future.

The Company maintains reserves for cost disallowances on
its cost-based contracts as a result of government audits.
The Company recently settled fiscal years 1996 thru 2001 for
amounts within the anticipated range. Final rates have hean
negotiated under these audits through 2001. The Company
has estimated its exposure based on completed audits,
historical experience and discussions with the government
auditors. If these estimates or their related assumptions
change, the Company may be required to record additional
charges for disallowed costs on its government contracts.

Impairment Losses

The Company recorded a $2.8 million impairment loss on its
Analytical Services Center in fiscal year 2005. An estimate of
the fair value of its assets was made based on external
appraisals of the land and buildings and internal estimates of
the realizable value of the eguipment. An impairment was
necessary due tc the uncertainty that the estimated future net
cash flows would be sufficient to recover the carrying value of
it long-lived assets. If estimates of the assets' fair value or their
related assumptions change, the Company may be required to
record additional impairment losses.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

We reduce our accounts receivable and costs and accrued
earnings in excess of billings on contracts in precess by
establishing an allowance for amaounts that, in the future, may
hecome uncollectible or unrealizable, respectively. We
determine our estimated allewance for uncollectible amounts
based on management's judgments regarding our operating
performance related to the adequacy of the services per-
formed, the status of change orders and claims, our experi-
ence settling change orders and claims and the financial
condition of our clients, which may be dependent on the type
of client and current economic conditions that the client may
be subject to.

Deferred Income Taxes

We use the asset and liahility approach for financial accounting
and reporting for income taxes. Deferred income tax assets
and liabilities are computed annually for differences between
the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities
that will result in taxable or deductible amounis in the future
based on enacted tax laws and rates applicable toc the periods
in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income.
Valuation allowances based on our judgments and estimates
are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets
to the amount expected o be realized in future operating
results. Management believes that realization of deferred tax
assets in excess of the valuation allowance is more likely than
not. Qur estimates are based on facts and circumstances in
existence as well as interpretations of existing tax regulations
and laws applied to the facts and circumstances, with the help
of professional tax advisors. Therefore, we estimate and
provide for amounts of additional income taxes that may be
assessed by the various taxing authorities.

Changes in Corporate Entities

On May 15, 2007 one of the Walsh Peruvian mincrity share-
holders sold 14% of their shares in that subsidiary for
$332.000. Half of the shares were repurchased by the
Peruvian company, and the olher half was purchased by Walsh
Environmental Scientists and Engineers, LLC {the majority
shareholder). Both of the transactions were completed for the
same terms and conditions. Half of the purchase price was
paid in cash and the remainder was taken as loans tc be repaid




over a two and a half year pericd. The purchase price that
was paid was at a premium over the book value of the stock.
This has created additional goodwill of approximately
$147.000 that was recorded in the fourth quarter.

On January 8, 2007 the Company sold its interest in the
shrimp farm in Costa Rica to the Roozen Group for
$2,600,000 in cash. There was a pretax gain on the sale of
the farm cf approximately $960.000 after deducting costs of
the sale. This gain is included in the accompanying financial
statements under discontinued operations.

On December 29, 20086 a capital infusion of $500,000 was
made to E & E do Brasil, Ltda. in order to fund working
capital requirements resulting from the subsidiary's signifi-
cant growth. On the same date. the Company entered into a
loan agreement for $120,000 each with its two Brazilian
partners. The loans were granted to allow them to maintain
their ownership percentage in E & E do Brasil, Lida. {a
limited partnership). The lcans made to the partners are
payable to Ecology and Environment, Inc., and are five year
loans with annual principal repayments, and twelve per cent
interest costs due on the outstanding balance. The loans are
secured by the partners' shares.

Inflation

Inflation has not had a material impact on the Company's
business because a significant amount of the Company's
contracts are either cost based or contain commercial rates
for services that are adjusted annually.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk

The Company may have exposure to market risk for change
in interest rates, primarily related to its investments. The
Company does not have any derivative financial instruments
included in its investments. The Company invests only in
instruments that meet high credit quality standards. The
Company is averse to principal loss and ensures the safety
and preservation of its invested funds by limited default risk,
market risk and reinvestment risk. As of July 31, 2007, the
Company's investments consisted of short-term commercial
naper and mutual funds. The Company does not expect any
material loss with respect 10 its investments.

The Company is currently documenting, evaluating, and
testing its internal controls in order to allow management to
report on and attest to, and its independent public account-
ing firm to attest to, the Company's internal controls as of
Juty 31, 2008 and 2009 respectively, as required by Section
404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Management continues to
invest time on this endeavor and expects to continue its
efforts through 2008. If weaknesses in our existing informa-
tion and control systems are discovered that impede our
ability to satisfy Sarbanes-Oxley reporting requirements, the
Company must successfully and timely implement improve-
ments to those systems. There is no assurance that the
Company will be able to meet these requirements,

Report of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Ecology and
Environment, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of Ecology and Environment, Inc. and its subsidiaries
as of July 31, 2007 and 20086, and the related consclidated
statements of income, changes in shareholders' equity, -and
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
July 31, 2007. These consolidated financial statements are
the responsibitity of the Company's management. Cur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consclidated
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United
States}). Those standards require that we ptan and perform
the audil to obtain reasonahle assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstaterment. The Company is not required to have, nor
were we engaged to perform, an audrt of its internal control
over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the company's internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we exprass no such opinion.
An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial stalements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our oginion,

In our opinion, the consolidated financia. statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Ecelogy and Environment, Inc. and its
subsidiaries as of July 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in
the period ended July 31, 2007 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United
Siates of America.

. Lt 0(?7)4/4.4 {&f’)“-‘—#‘
Schneider Downs & Co., Inc.

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
October 29, 2007




Consolidated Balance Sheet

Assets July 31, 2007 July 31, 2006
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $15,724,139 S 13,094,499

Investment securities available for sale 101,009 97,560

Contract receivables, net 36,742,288 37,011,377

Deferred income taxes 5,196,728 5.630,832

Income tax receivable 1,357,213 —

Other current assets 1,516,972 1,041,751
Total current assets 60,638,349 56,876.019
Property, building and equipment, net 7,725,535 7,776,232
Deferred income taxes 1,404,232 1,316,040
Other assets 1.438.329 3,184,093
Total assets £ 71,206,445 $ 69,152,384
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current liahilities:

Accounts payable $ 10,178.873 $ 9,306,633

Accrued payroll costs 6,191,434 6,379,724

income taxes payable 664.085 1,499,292

Deferred revenue 20,791 161,225

Current portion of leng-term debt and capital lease obligations 333.229 403,182

Other accrued liabilities 8,866,707 10,820,369
Total current liahilities 26,325,119 28,570,425
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations 385,270 341,664
Minority interest 3.582.968 2,612,836
Commitments and contingencies (see note #14) — —
Shareholders' equity:

Preferred stock, par value $.01 per share; _ _

authorized - 2,000,000 shares; no shares issued

Class A common stock, par value $.01 per share;

Authorized - 6,000,000 shares; issued - 2,661,498

and 2,534,566 shares 26,615 25,346

Class B common stock, par value $.01 per share;

Authorized - 10,000,000 shares; issued - 1,732,227

and 1,650,173 shares 17,323 16,502

Capital in excess of par value 20,051,446 17,684.373

Retained earnings 22,211,098 23,163,718

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 288,102 {2,208,830)

Treasury stock - Class A common, 104,020 and 102,204 shares;

Class B common, 64,801 and 26,259 shares, at cost {1,692,4986} {1,063,648)
Total shareholders' equity 40,913,088 37.627,459
Total liahilities and shareholders' equity $ 71.206.445 $69,152,384

The accompanying nates are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Income

Year ended July 31,

2007 2006 2005

Revenue $103,489670 398,054,528 $91,350,613
Cost of professional services and
other direct operating expensas 40,240,295 40,878,554 38,015,428
Subcontract costs 17,215,450 16,218,008 16,890,103
Gross Profit 46,033,925 40,956,966 36,445,082
Administrative and indirect operating expenses 28,7"54,534 24,899,008 23,821,948
Marketing and related costs 10,689,698 9,335,060 10,341,414
Depreciation 1,380,223 1,164,095 1,601,035
Write-off of investment in Venezuela 1,079,155 -— —
Long-lived asset impairmeant loss — — 2,750,972
Income {loss) from operations 4,130,315 5,658,813 (1,870,287)
Interest expense (162,442) (95,907} {122,342)
Interest income 542,700 216.213 42,267
Other income {expense) 1,281 {11,280) {122,287}
Net foreign gurrency exchange gain 65,964 41,452 54,868
Income (loss) frem continuing operations before income
taxes and minaority interest 4,577,818 5,709,291 {2,117.781}
Income tax provision (benefit} 106,700 2,147,443 {1,713,596)
Net income {loss) from continuing operations
hefore minority interest 4,471,118 3,661,848 (404,185}
Minority interest (1,965,099} (838,995} {1,019,864)
Net income {loss) from continuing operations 2,506,019 2,722,853 {1.,424,049)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 985,797 (226,089) (238,63b)
Income tax benefit (provision) on gain (loss) frorm discontinued cperations (417,345) 85,823 74,144
Net income {loss) $ 3.074.47 $ 2,582,587 $ {1,586,540)
Net income (loss) per commen share: basic

Continuing operations 3 060 % 0.65 3 {0.34}

Discontinued operations 0.13 (0.03) {0.04)
Net income {loss) per common share: basic 3 073 % 0.62 $ {0.38)
Net income {loss) per commeon share: diluted

Continuing operations $ 059 3% 0.65 £ {0.34)

Discontinued operations 013 (0.03) (0.04)
MNet income {loss) per common share: diluted $ 072 $ 0.62 $ {0.38)
Weighted average common shares outstanding: basic 4,184,673 4,180,287 4,160,834
Weighted average common shares outstanding: diluted 4,261,623 4,188,278 4,160,834

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended July 31,

Cash flows from operating activilies: 2007 2006 2005
Net income $3,074,471 $ 2,682,687 $ (1,586,540}
Net income {loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax 568,452 {140,266} (162,491)
Income from continuing operations 2,506.019 2,722,853 1,424,049}
Adjustments to reconcile net inceme 1o net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Write-off of Investment in Venezuela 1,079,155 — —
Impairment of long-lived assets — — 2,750,372
Depreciation 1,380,223 1,164,085 1,501,035
Share-based compensation expense 121,396 212506 299,220
Gain on disposition of property and equipment (1.045) {12.879) 6,286
Minority interest 1,965,099 838,995 1,019,864
Provision for contract adjustments 1,064,204 1,524,049 467,954
{Increase) decrease in:
- contracts receivable, net {(785,115) (7.178,436) 4,593,343
- cther current assets {457,894) 994,348 437,474
- deferred income taxes (61,568) (886.440) {1,140,159)
- income tax receivable (1,357.213) — —
- other nen-current assets 2,049,412 (1,080,072} 459,085
Increase (decrease) in:
- accounts payable 872,240 3,284,995 (48.628)
- accrued payroll costs {188.290} 2,542,289 (773.662)
- income taxes payable (835,207) 1,463,170 {326,892)
- deferred revenue {70,434) {70,388) (962,608}
- other accrued liabilities (1,669,663} 3,237,676 (683,903}
Net cash provided by operating activities 5.601.318 8.757.763 6,175,212
Cash flows provided by (used in) invesling activities:
Acquisition of minority interest of subsidiary 1166,000) — —
Purchase of property, building and equipment 11,328,481) (985,323) (246,290C)
Proceeds from maturity of investrments — 24,780 26,136
Payment for the purchase of bond (3,408) {3.279) {3,109)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,497,889) (963,862) (223.263)
Cash flows provided by (used in} financing activities:
Dividends paid (1,464,821} {1,420,930) (1.384,092)
Proceeds from debt 298,519 549,925 747863
Repayment of debt {490 866) {457,203} {698,729)
Distributions to minority partners (768,596} (1,103,996) (396.,095)
Net proceeds from issuance of comman stock — 8,700 1,812
Purchase of treasury stock (1,085,901} (25,077} {630,057)
Net cash used in financing activities (3,511,765} (2.448,587) {2.259,298)
Effect of exchange rate changes cn cash and cash equivalents (224.485) 28,122 100,725
Discontinued Operations
Net cash used in discontinued operating activities (237.540) (151.069) (161.593)
Net cash provided by discontinued investing activities - sale of assets 2,500,000 — —
Net cash provided by {used in} discontinued operations 2,262,460 (151,069} {161.593)
Net increase in cash and cash eguivalents 2,629,640 5,222,383 3.631,783
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 13,084,499 7.872,116 4,240,333
Cash and cash equivatents at end of period $ 15,724,139 % 13,084,499 $ 7872116

The avcompanying notes are anintageal parl of those linnncial stalements,
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Accumulated

Capita! in Other
Common Stock Excess of Retained Comprehensive  Unearned Treasury Stock  Comprehensive
Class Shares  Amount  Par Value Earnings  Income Compensation Shares  Amount Income
Balance at July 31, 2004 A 2501985 825073}  $17582444 324972837  $i2.336.723) ${193,282) 87,749 $(694121)  $2176,424
B 1581304 IE,813}
Net loss — — — — 11,586,540} — —_ — — (1,586,540
Foreign currancy translation reserve - — — — - 100,725 - - - 100,725
Cash dividends paid {$.32 per share) - - - - {1.384.092) - - - - -
Unrealized investment gain, net —_ —_ —_ — — {53) —_ — — [53)
Conversion of comman stock - Bto A A 12,000 120 — — — — - — —
B {12,000} (120) — — — — — — —
Repurchase of Class A common stack — — — — — —_ — 52,500 (530,057) —
Stock options exercised A 250 i 1.810 — — — — — _
Issuance of stock under stock award plan, net  — — — 38.230 — — (134,971} [33.531) 265,230 —
Amortization, net of tax — — — — — — 164,717 - - -
Forfeitures — — — 10.317) — — 4543 3,776 {28.751) —
Balance at July 35, 2005 A 2514235 $25143y $17622177  § 22002059 § (2,236,051 $(158,993) 120,494 $(3987.199)  $(1.485,868)
B 1668304 15,693}
Net income — - — - 2,582,587 - - - - 2,562,587
Reclassification due to adoption of FAS 123R — - — 158,993} — - 158 993 — - —
Foreign currency translation reserve — - — — — 28,127 — — — 28122
Cash dividends paid ($.33 per share) —_ — — — {1,420,930) —_ —_ —_— — —
Unrealized investment gain, net — — — — — (901) — — — {301}
Conversion of comman stock - Bto A A 19.131 191 — — — — _ _ _
B 118,131} 1191} — — — — — — —
Repurchase of Class A common stock — — — — — — — 2535 125.077) —
Stock options exercised A 1.200 12 8,688 — — — — — —
lssuance of stock under stock award plan — — — — — — — — — —
Share-based compensation — — — 130,277 — — — — — —
Other — — — 82,29 — — — 5374 41,372 —
Balance at July 31, 2006 A 2534566 $25346y $17.684373  § 2316376 § (22088300 ¢ — 128463  $(1,053,648)  $2,609,808
B 1650173 15,5[12}
Net income - - - - 3074401 - - - — 307440
Reclassification adjustment for realized foreign
currency translation loss in net income - — — -— — 211043 — — — 210,431
Foreign currency translation reserve — — — — — 397,476 — — — 397.476
Cash dividends paid ($.34 per share) - — — — (1464921 — — — — —
5% Stock Dividend A 126522 1,255} 2,560,078 12,562,168) — — 8,040 — —
B 82,464 825
Unrealized investment gain, net — — — — — 25 — — — 2
Conversion of common stock - Bto A A 410 4 - — — — — — —
B 1) i4] — — — — — — —
Repurchase of Class A common stock — — — — — — — 86,806  (1.085.301) —
issuance of stock under stock award plan — — — {325,985} — — — {57,620} 472,484 —
Share-based compensation — — — 121,396 — — — — — —
Tax impact of share-based compensation — — — 5,860 — — — —_ — —
Qther — — — 5724 — — — 3135 {25.431) —
Balance at July 31, 2007 A 2861498 326615} 320051446  $22211.098 $ 298,102 — 168,824 §(1692,496) 35,582,403
B 17 17,323}
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Summary of Operations and Basis of Presentation

Ecology and Environment, Inc. {“the Company”} is an environmental
consulting and testing firm whose underlying philosophy is to
provide a broad range of environmenta! consulting services
worldwide so that sustainable economic and human develepment
may proceed with minimum negative impact on the environment.
These services include environmental audits and impact
assessments, hazardous material site evaluations and response
programs, water and groundwater monitoring, laboratory analyses,
environmental infrastructure planning and many other projects
provided by the Company's multidisciplinary professional staff.
Revenues reflected in the Company's consclidated statement of
income represent services rendered for which the Company
maintains a primary contractual relationship with its customers.
Included in revenues are certain services outside the Company's
nermal operations which the Company has elected 10 subcontract to
other contractors.

During fiscal years ended July 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the
percentages of total revenues derived from contracts exclusively
with the United States Environmental Protection Agency [EPA) were
6%, 8% and 13%, respectively. The Company's Superfund Technical
Assessment and Response Team {START) contracts accounted for
the majority of the EPA revenue. The percentage of revenues
derived from contracts with the United States Department of
Defense (DOD) were 8%, 18% and 13% for fiscal years ended July
31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a. Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the
Company and its wholly-owned and majarity owned subsidiaries.
Also reflected in the financial stalements are the 50% ownership in
two Chinese operating joint ventures, Beijing YiYi Ecology and
Environment Engineering Co. Ltd. and the Tianjin Green Engineering
Company. These joint ventures are accounted for under the equity
method. The Company's interest in Beijing Y1Yi Ecology and
Environment Engineering Co. Ltd. was sold in June 2005. All
significant intercompany transactions and talances have been
eliminated.

b. Use of estimates

The preparaticn of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make
gstimates and assumgtions that affect the amounts reparted in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may
differ from those estimates.

¢. Reclassifications

The Company had previously classified second-tier subsidiaries’
minority interest as “other expense” and "other accrued liabilities.”
These amounts ($5633,276 at July 31, 2006 and $499,952 at July 31,
2005 on the income statement and $866,987 at July 31, 2006 and
$660,256 at July 31, 2005 on the balance sheet) have been
reclassified to minarity interest. The Company had previcusly
classified certain subsidiaries’ bad debt and amortization expense as
“other expense” on the income statement. These amounts
{$112,360 and $18,904 at July 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively) have
been reclassified to administrative and indirect operating expenses
on the income statement. As a result of the implementation of SAB
108, the Company reclassified the $24,357 that had been recorded
as "other expense” during the second quarter  The cost of
operations was reduced in the amount of $83,357 and minority
interest expense increased in the amount of $59,000.
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d. Revenue recognition

Substantially all of the Company's revenue is derived from
environmental consulting work, with the balance derived from
sample analysis (E & £ Analytical Services Center, in operation
through January 2005} and agquaculture. The consulting revenue is
principally derived from the sale of laber hours. The consuliing work
is performed under a mix of fixed price, cost-type, and time and
material contracts. Contracts are required from all customers.
Revenue is recognized as follaws:

Contract Type Work Type Revenue Recognition Policy

Fixed Price Consulting  Percentage of completion, approximating
the ratio of total costs incurred to date to
total estimated costs.

Cost-Type Consulting  Costs as incurred. Fixed fee portion is

recognized using percentage of
completion determined by the
percentage of level of effort (LOE) hours
incurred to total LOE hours in the
respective contracts.

Time and Materials  Consulting  As incurved at contract rates.

Unit Price Laboratory/ Upon completion of reports {laboratory)
Aguaculture  and upon defivery and payment fram

customers {aquaculture).

Substantially all of the Company's cost-type work is with federal
governmental agencies and, as such, is subject to audits after
contract completion. Provisions for adjustments to the revenue
accrued under these cost-type contracts are provided for on an
annual basis based on past settlement history. Government audits
have been completed and final rales have been negotiated through
fiscal year 2001, The balance in the allowance for contract
adjustments accounts principally represents a reserve for contract
adjustments for the fiscal years 1996-2007.

We reduce our accounts receivable and costs and accrued earnings
in excess of billings on contracts in process by establishing an
allowance for amounts that, in the future, may become uncollectible
or unrealizable, respectively. We determine our estimated allowance
for uncollectible amounts based on management's judgments
regarding our operating performance related to the adeguacy of the
services performed, the status of change orders and cleims, our
experience setiling change orders and claims and the financial
condition of our clients, which may be dependent on the type of
client and current economic conditions that the client may be
subject to.

Change orders can occur when changes in scope are made after
project work has begun, and can be initiated by either the Company
or its clients. Claims are amounts in excess of the agreed contract
price which the Company seeks to recover from a client for
customer delays and / or errors or unagproved change orders that
are in dispute. Costs related to change orders and claims are
recognized as incurred. Revenues are recognized on change orders
tincluding profit) when it is probable that the change order will be
approved and the amount can be reasenably estimated. Revenue on
claims is not recognized until the claim is approved by the custamer.

All bid and propesal and other pre-contract costs are expensed as
incurred. Out of pocket expenses such as travel, meals, field
supplies, and other costs hilled direct to contracts are included in
hoth revenue and cost of professional services.




e. Investment securities

Investment securities have been classified as available for sale and
are stated at estimated fair value. Unrealized gains or losses related
to invesiment securities available for sale are reflected in
accumulated other comprehensive income, net of applicable income
taxes in the consolidated balance sheet and statement of changes in
shareholders' equity. The cost of securities sold is based on the
specific identification method. The Company had gross unrealized
gains of approximately $5,000 in fiscal year 2007 and 2006.

f. Property, building and equipment, depreciation
and amortization

Property, building and equipment are stated at cost. Office furniture
and all equipment are depreciated on the straight-line method for
pock purposes, excluding computer equipment which is
depreciated on the accelerated method for book purposes, and on
accelerated methods far tax purposes over the estimated useful
lives of the assets (three 1o seven years). The headguarters building
is depreciated on the straight-line rmethod for bath book and tax
purposes over an estimated useful life of 32 years. Its components
are depreciated cver their estimated useful lives ranging from 7 to
15 years. The analytical services center building and warehouse is
depreciated on the straight-line method over an estimated useful life
of 4G years for both book and tax purposes. Leasehold
improvements are amortized for book purposes over the terms of
the leases or the estimated useful lives of 1the assets, whichever is
shorter. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to
expense as incurred. Expenditures for improvements are capitalized.
When property or equipment is retired or sold, any gain or 10ss on
the transaction is reflected in the current year's earnings.

g. Fair vatue of financial instruments

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, contracts
receivahle and accounts payable at July 31, 2007 and 2006
approximate fair value. Investment securities available for sale are
carried at estimated fair value. Leng-term debt consists of bank
loans and capitalized equipment leases. Based on the Company's
assessment of the current financial market and corresponding risks
associated with the debt, management believes that the carrying
amount of long-term debt at July 31, 2007 and July 21, 2006
approximates fair value.

h. Translation of foreign currencies

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries where the local
currency is tha functional currency are translated into U.S. dollars
using exchange rates in effect at period end for assets and liabilities
and average exchange rates during each reporting period for results
of operations. Translation adjustments are deferred in accumulated
other comprehensive income.

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries located in highly
inflationary economies are remeasured as if the functional currency
were the U.S. dellar. The remeasurement of focal currencies into U.S.
doflars creates translation adjustments which are included in net
income. There were no highly inflationary economy translation
adjustments for fiscal years 2005 - 2007

i. Income taxes

The Company follows the asset and liability approach to account for
income taxes. This approach requires the recognition of deferred tax
liabilities and assets for the expected future tax consequences of
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax
bases of assets and liabilities. Although realization is not assured,
management believes it is more likely than not that the recorded net
deferred tax assets will be realized. Since in some cases
management has utilized estimates, the amount of the net deferred

tax asset considered realizable could be reduced in the near term.
No provision has been made for United States income iaxes
applicable 1o undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries as it is
the intention of the Company to indefinitely reinvest those earnings
in the operations of those entities.

j- Pension costs

The Company has a non-contributory defined contribution plan
providing deferred benefits for substantially all of the Company's
employees. The Company also had a supplementat defined
contribution plan {SERP} to provide deferred benefits for senior
executives of the Company. The annual expense of the Company's
supplemental defined contribution plan is based on a percentage of
eligible wages as authorized by the Company's Board of Directors.
Benefits under this plan are funded as accrued. The SERP was
terminated effective July 31, 2006 and balances totaling
approximately $342,000 were paid in the first quarter of fiscal year
2007.

The Company does not affer any benefits that would result in a
liahility under either SFAS No. 106 "Employers’ Accounting for
Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions® or SFAS No. 112
"Employers' Accounting for Post Employment Benefits.”

k. Stock-based compensation

The Company adopted FAS 123{(R), Share-Based Payment, effective
August 1, 2005. The Statement requires companies to expense the
value of employee stock options and similar awards. Under FAS
123(R), SBP awards result in a cost that will he measured at fair
value on the awards' grant date, based on the estimated number of
awards that are expected to vest. Compensation cost for awards
that vest would not be reversed if the awards expire without being
exercised. The unearned stock compensation balance of $158.993
as of July 31, 2005, which was accounted for under Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” {APB 25), was reclassified into additional paig-in-capital
upon adoption of SFAS 123(R). Additionally, the Cempany elected
the “short-cut’ method to calculate the pool of windfall tax benefits.
The impact on the Company's financial statements was not rmaterial.

\. Earnings per share

Basic EPS is computed by dividing income available to commoaon
shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution
that would occur if securities or other contracts to issue common
stock were exercised or converted into comman stock or resultted in
the issuance of common stock that then shared in the earnings of
the Company. See Footnote No. 13.

m. Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income is defined as “the change in equity of a
business enterprise during a period from transactions and other
events and circumstances from non-owner sources." The term
"comprehensive income® is used 1o describe the total net earnings
plus cther comprehensive income. For the Campany, other
comprehensive income includes currency translation adjustments on
foreign subsidiaries and unrealized gains or losses on available-for-
sale securities.

n. Segment reporting

Management designates the internal organization that is used by
management for making operating decisions and assessing
performance as the source of the Company's reportable segments.
Ecology and Envircnmaent, Inc. has three reporiable segmaents which
are differentiated by product line: consulting services, analytical
labcratory services, and aguaculture. The consulting services
segment provides broad based environmental service
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encompassing audits and impact assessments, surveys, air and
water quality management, environmental engineering,
environmental infrastructure planning, and industrial hygiene and
occupaticnal health studies 1o a worldwide base of customers. The
analytical laboratory provided analytical testing services to industrial
and governmenial clients for the analysis of waste, soil and
sediment samples.

o. Impairment of long-lived assets

The Company accounts for impairment of leng-fived assets in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
[SFAS) No. 144 "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets." SFAS No. 142 required that long-lived assets be
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the bock value of the asset may not be
recoverable. The Company assesses recoverability of the carrying
value of the assel by estimating the future net cash flows
{undiscounted) expected ta result from the asset, including eventual
disposition. If the future net cash flows are less than the carrying
value of the asset, an impairment loss is recorded equal to the
difference between the asset's carrying value and fair value.

p. American Jobs Creation Act of 2004

In October 2004, Congress passed, and the President signed into
law, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 {the "Act”). Some key
provisions of the aci affecting the Company were the repeal of the
United States export tax incentive known as the extraterritorial
income exclusion (EIE) and the implementation of a domestic
manufacturing deduction. The EIE is phased out over the calendar
years 20056 and 2006 with an exemption for hinding contracts with
unrelated persons entered into before September 18, 2003. These
phase-out provisions will allow the Company to maintain an EIE
deduction at a reduced amount through fiscal year 2007 The
Company will accrue some benefits from the domestic
manufacturing deduction, although such benefits are not material.
Under the Act's repatriation provisions, the Company repatriated
approximately $62,000 and $77.000 during fiscal years 2007 and
2006, respectively.

q. Goodwill

During the fourth quarnter of fiscal year 2007, Walsh Environmental
Scientists and Engineers, LLC recorded $147,000 in goodwill related
to their purchase of additional shares of thair subsidiary Walsh Peru.
The goodwill of approximately $851,000 is subject to an annual
assessment for impairment. Dunng fiscat yvear 2007, this test did not
result in any charges.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company's policy is to invest cash in excess of operating
requirements in income-producing short-term investments. At July
31, 2007 and 20086, short-term investments consist of commercial
paper and money market funds and are carried at cost. Short-term
investments amounted to approximately $2.6 million and $55.000 at
July 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively, and are reflected in cash and
cash equivalents in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet
and statement of cash flows.

For purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows. the
Company considers all highly hquid instruments purchased with a
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash paid
for interest amounted to appreximately $162,000, $96,000, and
$122,000 in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Cash
paid for income taxes amounted to approximately $2.2 million, $1.3
million, and $897.000 in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005.
respectively.
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4. Contract Receivahbles, net

July 31
2007 2006
United States government -
Billed $2,905,030 $3.040.081
Unbilled 4,195,989 4,267,073
7,101,019 7,307,154

Industrial cusiomers and state and municipal governments -

Billed 24,496,429 29,643,428
Unbilled 5,885,363 3.360.808
31,381,792 33,004,234

tess allowance for doubtful
accounts and contract adjustments - 11,740,523} (3,300,011}

$36,742.288  $37,011.377

United States government receivables arise from long-term U.S.
government prime contracts and subcontracts. Unhilled receivahles
resull from revenues which have been earned, but are not billed as
of period-end. The above unbilled balances are comprised of
incurred costs plus fees not yet processed and billed: and
differences hetween year-to-date provisional billings and year-to-
date actual contract costs incurrad and fees eamed of approximately
$202,000 at July 31, 2007 and {$683.000} at July 31, 2006.
Management anticipates that the July 31, 2007 unbilled receivables
will be substantially billed and collected within one year. Within the
ahove billed balances are contractual retainages in the amount of
approximately $408,000 at July 31, 2007 and $764,000 at July 31,
2006. Management anticipates that the July 31, 2007 retainage
balance will be substantially ccliected within one year. Included in
the balance of receivables for industiial customers and state and
municipal customers are receivables, net of subcontract costs, due
under the contracts in Kuwait and Saudi Arabia of $6.2 million and
$9.3 million at July 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Included in other acerued liabilities is an additional allowance for
contract adjustments relating to potential cost disallowances on
amounts billed and collected in current and prior years' projects of
approximately $£3.9 million at July 31, 2007 and $3.4 million at July
31, 2006. Also included in other accrued labilities is a
reclassification of billings in excess of recognized revenues of
approvimately $4.0 million at July 31, 2007 and $6.0 million at July
31, 2006. An allawance for contract adjustments is recorded for
contract disputes and government audits when the amounts are
estimable.

5. Property, Building and Equipment, net

July 31
007 20086
Land $ R43061 & 543.051
Buildings 11,154,672 11,112,042
Laboratory and other equipment 3.072.609 2,817,387
Information technelogy equipment 6.369,348 5.815,183
Office furniture and equipment 2,417,764 2,211,654
Leasehold improvements and other 1.690,222 1,431,621

$25.147.666 $24,030.838

Less accumulated depreciation

and amortization (17,422,131} {16,254 .606)

$7,725638 $7,776,232




6. Line of Credit

The Cempany maintains an unsecured ling of credit available for
waorking capitai and letters of credit of $20 million with a bank at
one-half percent below the prevailing prime rate. A second line of
credit has been estabiished at another hank for up te $13.5 million
exclusively for letters of credit and is renewed annually. There were
two additional lines of credit established dunng fiscal year 2007.
The Company established one for up to $5.0 millicn exclusively for
letters of credit. An additional line of credit was established at
Waish Environmental for up to $750,000 exclusively for working
capital and letters of credit. At July 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company
had letters of credit outstanding totaling approximately $1.3 million
and $1.5 miliicn, respectively. At July 31, 2007 and 2008, there were
no borrowings for warking capital against the lines of credit.

The Company is in compliance with all bank loan covenants at July
31, 2007.

A reconciliation of income tax expense (benefit) using the statutory
J.S. income tax rate compared with actual income tax expense
{benefit) was as follows:

2007 2006 2005
1S federal statutory income tax rate 34.0% 34.0% {34.0%)
Re-evaluation of tax contingencies (11.1%) — (31.2%)
Additional tax basis in Venezuelan subsidiary  {10.1%) — —
Income from “pass-through” entities taxable

10 minority partners {9.9%) (4.7%)  (10.5%)
Intarnational rate differential {2.7%) 6.0% 27%
Extraterritorial income tax exclusion {1.2%]) {1.5%) {5.2%)
State taxes, net of federal benefit 0.4% 3.6% 1.8%
Gther 2.9% 0.2% (4.5%)
Total 2.3% 37.6% {80.9%)

The significant componants of deferred tax assets (liabilities) are

7. Debt and Capital Lease Obligations as follows:
‘ ) ] ) ) . Fiscal Year
Debt inclusive of capital lease obligations consists of the following: 2007 2006
July 31, July 31, Contract and other reserves $3,252,519 $3,664,043
. 2007 2006 Discontinued cperations — 1,662,279
Various bank loans and advances at Fi ‘ il
subsidiaries with interest rates ranging ixed assets and intangitles 1,143,248 1,080,122
from 5% to 14% $477.466  $531,070 Accrued compensation 625,289 737,398
Capitai lease obligatians at subsidiaries Net operating loss cairyforwards 1,708,130 —
with varying interest rates averaging 11% 241,033 213,776 Other 178,818 135,647
718,499 744,846 Deferred tax assets $6,913.104 $7.279,489
Less: current portion of debt and capital
lease obligations {333,229)  (403.182) State income taxes {312,144} {332,617}
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations $385,270  $341,664 Deferred tax liabilities (312,144} (332.817)
Net deferred tax asset $6,600 960 $6,946,872

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt and capital lease
obligations at July 31, 2007 are as follows:

Amount
Fiscal Year 2008 $333.229
Fiscal Year 2009 166,318
Fiscal Year 2010 82,292
Fiscal Year 2011 45,485
Fiscal Year 2012 30,770
Thersafter 61425
$718,499
8. Income Taxes
The provision {benefit) for income taxes was as follows:
Fiscal Year
2007 2006 2005
Current:
Federal $ 598564  $2,340,755 3 (828,582)
State 224,987 369,118 103,981
Foreign 516,711 448,126 280,494
$1,338,262 $3,157,999 § (444,097}
Deferred:
Federal $(1.042,458) $ (926.101) $(1,074,049}
State and Foreign (189,104} {84 455) {195,450}
$(1.231,662)  $(1.010556) $(1,269,499)
$ 106,700 $2.147,443 $({1,713.596)

The Company has not recorded income taxes applicable to
undistributed earnings of all other foreign subsidiaries that are
indefinitely reinvested in thase operations. At July 37, 2007, these
amounts relate primarily to operations in Saudi Arabia and Chile of
approximately $1.455,000.

The Company's tax benefit related to continuing operations for the
fiscal year ended July 31, 2007 reflects an additicnal benefit of
$510,000 as a result of a change in its estimated contingent tax
liabilities for income tax audits. These contingent liabilities were re-
evaluated and a downward adjustment was made as a result of an
appeals settlement that cccurred in July of 2007 relating to positions
taken on the Company's fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2005 tax returns. In
September of 2007, the Internal Revenue Service concluded the
audits of fiscal 2004 though 2006.

Similarly, the Company's tax benefit related 10 continuing operations
for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2005 reflects an additional benefit
of $660,000 as a result of a change in its estimated reserves for
income tax audits. These reserves were re-evaluated and a
downward adjustment was made to accommodate the close-out of
Internal Revenue Service audits of the Company's fiscal years 2002
and 2003 as reported to the Campany in early May 2005.

As of July 31, 2007, for federal income tax return purposes, the
Company has approximately $4,400,000 of U.S. federal net operating
loss carryforwards available to offset future taxable income. This
loss carryforward will expire in 2027. SFAS 109 specifies that
deferred tax assets are to be reduced by a valuation allowance if itis
maore likely than not that some pertion of the deferred tax asset will
not be realized. Management believes that future taxable income
should be sufficient to realize all of our deferred tax assets.
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In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, an interpretation of SFAS 109.
FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and
reduces the diversity in current practice associated with the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax pasition taken or
expected 10 be taken in a tax return by defining @ "more-likely-than-
not” threshold regarding the sustainability of the position. The

Company is required to adopt FIN 48 in the fiscal yaar ended July 31,

2008. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of FIN 48 on
its financial statements.

9. Shareholders' Equity

a. Class A and Class B common stock

The relative rights, preferences and limitations of the Company's
Class A and Class B common stock can be summarized as follows:
Holders of Class A shares are entitled 1o elect 25% of the Board of
Directors so long as the number of outstanding Class A shares is at
least 10% of the combined total number of cuistanding Class A and
Class B common shares. Holders of Class A common shares have
one-tenth the voting power of Class B commen shares with respect
10 most other matters.

In addition, Class A shares are eligible 1o receive dividends in excess
of (and not less than) those paid to holders of Class B shares.
Holders of Class B shares have the opticn to convert at any time,
each share of Class B common stock into one share of Class A
common stock. Upon sale or transfer, shares of Class B common
stock will automatically convert into an eqgual number of shares of
Class A common stock, except that sales or transfers of Class B
common stock to an existing holder of Class B common stock or to
an immediate family member will not cause such shares 1o
automatically convert into Class A common stock.

b. Incentive stock compensation

Under the Company's incentive stock option plan (the "plan"), key
employees, including officers of the Company, were granted oplions
tc purchase shares of Class A common stock at an option price of at
least 100% of the shares' fair market value at the date of grant.
Shares become exercisable after a minimum holding period of five
years from the date of grant and expire after a period of ten years
from the date of grant. A total of 209,390 shares were granted under
the pian. The plan was terminated in March of 1996 and all options
expired during fiscal year 2006.

Activity under the plan is as follows:

Options outstanding at July 31, 2004 at a weighted

average price of $7.96 per share 20,450
Exercised shares at $7.25 per share 250
Canceiled shares 1,700
Expired shares at $5.00 per share 2,100
Options outstanding at July 31, 2005 at a weighted

average price of $7.25 per share 10,400
Exercised shares at $7.25 per share 1,200
Expired shares at $7.25 per share 9,200

Options outstanding at July 31, 2006 —

The Company estimates that if it elected 1o measure compensation
cost for employee stock based compensation arrangements under
SFAS No. 123, it would not have caused net income and earnings
per share for fiscal year 2005 to be maternially different from the
reported amounts.

24

c. Stock Award Plan

Effective March 16, 1998, the Company adopted the Ecology and
Environment, Inc. 1998 Stock Award Plan (the “1998 Pian”). To
supplement the 1998 Plan, the 2003 Stock Award Plan (the "2003
Plan") was approved by the shareholders at the annual meeting held
in January Z004. (The 1998 Pian and the 2003 Plan are collectively
referred 10 as the “Award Plan”). The 2003 Plan was approved
retroactive to October 16, 2003 and will terminate on October 15,
2008. Under the Award Plan key employees (including officers) of
the Company or any of its present or {uture subsidiaries may be
designated to receive awards of Class A common stock of the
Company as a bonus for services rendered 1o the Company or its
subsidiaries, without payment therefore, based upon the fair market
value of the common stock at the time of the award. The Award Plan
autherizes the Company's Board of Directors to determine for what
period of time and under what circumstances awards can be
forteited.

The Company issued 57,620 shares valued at $585.995 in Octeber
2006 pursuant 1o the Award Plan. These awards issued have a three
year vesting period. The "pool” of excess tax henefits accumulated
in Capital in Excess of Par Value at July 31,2007 and 2006 was
approximately $88,000 and $82.000, respectively. Total gross
compensation expense is recognized over the vesting period.
Unearned compensation expense was approximately $349 000 and
$42.000 at July 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively.

d. Stock Dividend

On July 19, 2007, the Board of Directors declared & 5% stock
dividend on the Company's Class A and Class B commaon stock
distributed on August 31, 2007 to shareholders of record on August
1, 2007. As of July 31, 2007, an amount equal to the fair value of the
common stock distributed was transferred from retained earnings to
the common stock and capital in excess of par value accounts. All
data with respect to net income per common share, weighted
average common shares outstanding. and dividends paid have been
retroactively adjusted to reflect the stock dividend.

10. Shareholders' Equity - Restrictive Agreement

Messrs. Gerhard J. Neurnaier, Frank B. Silvestro, Ronald L. Frank and
Gerald A. Strobel entered into a Stockholders' Agreement in 1870
which governs the sale of certain shares of common stock owned
by them, the formar spouse of one of the individuals and some of
their children. The agreement provides that prior to accepting a bona
fide offer to purchase all or any part of their shares, each party must
first allow the other members 1o the agreement the opportunity to
acquire on a pro rata basis, with right of over-allotment, all of such
shares covered by the offer on the same terms and conditions
proposed by the offer.

11. Lease Commitments

The Company rents certain office facilities and eguipment under
non-cancelable operating leases. The Company also rents certain
facilities for servicing project sites over the term of the related long-
term government contracts. These contracts provide for
reimbursement of any remaining rental commitments under such
lease agreements in the event that the government terminates the
contract,




At July 31, 2007, future minimum rental commitrnents are as
follows:

Fiscal Year Amount

2008 $2,324,755
2009 1,494,467
2010 1,120,468
2011 808,213
2012 b2 578
Thereafter 527,926

Lease agreements may contain step rent provisions.and/or free
rent concessions. In such cases, any material leases are in
compliance with paragraph 15 of SFAS 13. Lease payments based
on a price index have rent expense recognized cn a straight line or
substantially equivalent basis, and they are included in the
calculation of minimum lease payments in accordance with SFAS
29. Gross rental expense under the ahove lease commitments for
2007, 2006, and 2005 was approximately $2.5 million, $2.7 million
and $3.0 miliion, respectively.

12. Defined Contribution Plans

Contributions to the defined contribution plan and supplemental
retirerment plan are discretionary and determined annually by the
Board of Directors. The total expense under the plans for fiscal years
2007, 2008, and 2005 was approximately $1.5 million, $1.3 million
and $1.3 million, respectively.

13. Earnings Per Share

The computation of basic earnings per share reconciled to diluted
earnings per share follows:
Fiscal Year
2007 2006 2005

Net incomne {Ioss) from
continuing operations avallable

to common stockholders $2.506.019 $2,722,853  $(1,424,049)
Net incorme ([lass) from

discontinued operations avaitable

1o comman stockholders 568,452 1140.266) {162.,491)
Net income {loss) available to

common stockholders $3.074,471 $2,582,587  ${1.586,540)

Weighted-average common shares

outstanding (basic) 4,194,673 4,180,287 14,160,834}
Basic earnings {loss) per share
Continued operations g 0.60 3 0656 $ {0.34)
Discontinued operations 0.13 (0.03) {0.04)
Basic sarnings {loss) per share $ 073 $ 062 % 10.38)
Incremental shares frorm assumed
conversions of stock options and
restricted stock awards 56,850 7.9 —
Adjusted weighted-average
commion shares cutstanding 4,261,623 4,188,278 4,160,834
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Continued operations g 0.59 3 065 % {0.34)
Discontinued operations 113 {0.03) 10.04)

Diluted earnings {loss) per share 3 0.72 % 062 % (0.38)

As of December 12, 2005, all cutstanding stock opticns expired. At
July 31, 2005, there were 10,400 stock options outstanding with an
exercise price of $7.25, which was not included in the above
calculations due teo their antidilutive nature.

After consideration of all the rights and privileges of the Class A and
Class B stockholders discussed in Note 9, in particular the right of
the holders of the Class B cammeon stock to elect no less than 756%
of the Board of Directors making it highly unlikely that the Company
will pay a dividend on Class A common stock in excess of Class B
common stock, the Company allocates undistributed earnings
between the classes on a one-to-one basis when computing
earnings per share. As a result, basic and fully dituted earnings per
Class A and Class B share are equal amounts.

14. Commitments and Contingencies

From tirme to time, the Company is named defendant in legal actions
arising out of the normal course of business. The Company is not a
party to any panding legal proceeding the resolution of which the
management of the Company believes will have a material adverse
effect on the Company's results of operations, financial condition,
cash flows, or to any other pending legal proceedings other than
ordinary, routine litigation incidental to its business. The Company
maintains liability insurance against risks arising out of the normal
course of business.

Certain contracts contain termination provisions under which the
customer may, without penalty, terminate the contracts upon written
notice to the Company. In the event of termination, the Company
would be paid only termination costs in accordance with the
particular contract. Generally, termination costs include unpaid costs
incurred to date, earned fees and any additional costs directly
allocable to the termination.

The Company is involved in other litigation arising in the normal
course ¢f business. In the opinion of management, any adverse
outcome to other litigation arising in the normal course of business
would not have a material impact on the financial results of the
Company.

The Company's three contracts in the State of Kuwait, funded by the
United Nations Compensation Commission (UNCC), began in fiscal
year 2002 and extend into fiscal year 2007. The Environmental
Saervices Agreements (ESAs) between the client, the Public Authority
for Assessment of Comipensation for Damages Resulting from Iraqi
Aggression (PAAC), and the Company were signed in January 2002.
These ESAs contemplated the receipt of a tax order from the
Ministry of Finance declaring that the income generated by the
Company in performance of the services would be exempt from
Kuwait income tax. The ESAs also stated that the Company would
be entitled to be reimbursed by PAAC for Kuwait income tax costs, if
any, s finally determined. The Company was notified in May 2002
by PAAC that the tax exemption contemplated in the ESAs had been
officially granted. In fiscal year 2007, E & E received notification
from PAAC that it should declare its taxes 1o the Ministry of Finance
in order to facilitate the closure and final payments under the
contracts. The Company believes that it holds a tax exemption, or at
a minimum, an obligation for reimbursement from its client PAAC for
any income taxes. Accordingly, the Company has not provided for
Kuwait income taxes on these contracts. Total receivables net of
subcontractors and allowance for doubtful accounts due to the
Company under these contracts at July 31, 2007 is approximately
$1.2 million. The Company believes the potential impact on its
operations maybe zero but will not exceed $1.2 million.




15. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the SEC staif issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 108, "Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when
Quantitying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements."
SAB 108 was issued in order to eliminate the diversity of practice
surrounding how public companies quantfy financial statement
misstatements. Traditionally, there have been two widely-recognized
methods for quantifying the effects of financial statement
misstatements: the "roll-over* methed and the "iron curtain® methed.
The roll-over method focuses primarily on the impact of a
misstatement of the income statement-including the reversing
effect of prior year misstatements—but its use can {ead to the
accumulation of misstatements in the balance sheet. The iron-
curtain methad, on the other hand, focuses primarily on the etfect of
correcting the period-end balance sheet with less emphasis on the
reversing effects of prior year errors on the income statement. Prior
10 August 1, 2006, the Company utilized the roll-over method for
quantifying identified financial slatement misstatements.

In SAB 108, the SEC staff established an approach that requires
guantification of financial statement misstatemnents based on the
effects of the misstatements on each of the company's financial
statements and the related financial statement disclosures. This
madel is commonly referred to as a "dual approach® because it
requires quantification of errors under both the iron curtain and the
roli-over methods.

SAB 108 permits public companies to initially apply its provisions
either by (i) restating prior financial statements as if the "dual
approach® had always been used or {ii) recording the cumulative
effect of initially applying the "dual approach” as adjustments to the
carrying values of assets and liabilities as of August 1, 2006 with an
offsetting adjustment recorded to the opening balance of retained
earnings.

The Campany elecled (o record the effects of applying SAB 108
using the "cumulative effect” transition method and recorded an
adjustment to reduce retained earnings by $302,000 in the first
quarter cf fiscal year 2007. However, upon subsequent review, the
Company concluded that $326,357 of this entry could have been

corrected by recording other balance sheet only adjustments, not
affecting retained earnings. This correction would result in a net
increase in retained earnings of 524,357 and can ne longer be
deemed material enough to be recorded as a cumulative effect
adjustment. Therefore, the Company has reversed the cumulative
effect adjustment recarded in the first quarter and reflected the
remaining $24,357 as corrections to cost of operations and minority
interest expense as shown on the table below.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, an interpretation of SFAS 109
FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for unceriainty in income taxes and
reduces the diversity in current practice associated with the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or
expecied o be taken in a tax return by defining a "mare-likely-than-
not” threshold regarding the sustainability of the position. The
Company is required 1o adopt FIN 48 in the fiscal year ended July
31. 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of FIN 48
on its financial statements and anticipates the impact to be
immaterial.

In September 2006, the FASR issued Statement No. 157, "Fair Value
Measurement” (FAS 157). which established a framework for
measuring fair value under generally accepted accounting principles
and expands disclosure about fair value measurements. FAS 157 is
effective for financial statements issued with fiscal years beginning
aiter Novernber 15, 2007. The Company 1s assessing the impact
that the adaption of FAS 157 will have on its financial statements.

In February 2007. the FASB issued Statement No. 158, “The Fair
Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” {(FAS 159},
The fair value option established by FAS 159 permits entities to
choose to measure eligible items at fair value at specified election
dates. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value
aption has been elected are reported in earnings at each
subsequent reporting date. FAS 159 is effective as of the beginning
of an entity's first fiscal year that begins after November 15, 2007,
The Company is currently assessing the impact of FAS 159 on its
financial statements.

As
As Reported @ Reversal of Correction of Restated @ Reclassified @
10/28/2006 SAB 108 SAB 108 10/28/2006 Reclas- 10/28/2006
Consolidated Balance Sheet {unaudited) Entry Entry (unaudited) sifications  {unaudited)
Contract receivables $ 38,025,875 $ {55,000} $ 55,000 $ 38025675 — § 38,025,675
Deferred income laxes 5,603,033 128,400 {135,400} 5,496,033 — 5,496.033
Other assets 897,466 159,000 50,357 1,106,823 — 1,106.823
Income taxes payable (970,365) 3,600 113,400 (853,360) — (853,365)
Minority interest (1,786,826) 59,000 (59,000) (1,786,826) — (1,786.826)
Capital in excess of par value (17,399,717) 7,000 — {17,382,717) — (17,392,717)
Retained earnings (23,559,486) (302,000) (24,357)  (23.885,843) — (23,885.843)
Consolidated Statement of Income™
Cost of professional services 9,660,815 — — 9,660,815  (27.600) 9,633,215
Subcontract costs 3,289,982 — — 3,289,982 (5,400} 3,284,582
Administrative and indirect operating costs 6,781,747 — — 6,781,747 (50,357} 6,731,390
Other expense 316,111 — 124 357) 291,754 24,357 316,311
Mingrity interest 271,063 — — 271,063 59,000 330,063

i Detail of ncrease in retained earnings




16. Other Accrued Liabilities

July 31
2007 2006
Allowance for contract adjustments $3.925525  $ 3.396.267
Billings in excess of revenue 3,995,645 5,978,603
Liabilities of operations held for sale _ 283,999
Other 945,537 1,161,506
$8.866,707  $10,820,369

17. Transfer of Qwnership/Dispositions

On May 15, 2007 cne of the Walsh Peruvian minority shareholders
sold 14% of their shares in that subsidiary for $332,000. Half of the
shares was purchased back by the Peruvian company, and the other
half was purchased by Walsh Environmental Scientists and
Engineers, LLC (the majority shareholder). Both of the transactions
were completed for the same terms and conditions. Half of the
purchase price was paid in cash and the remainder was taken as
loans 10 be repaid over a two and a half year period. The purchase
price that was paid was at a premium over the bock value of the
stock. This has created additional goodwill of approximately
$147,000 that was booked in the fourth quarter.

Due to a continuing deterioration in business and political conditions
in Venezuela and the likelihood that, effective in June 2007. E & E's
Venezuelan subsidiary would ne longer be able to compete for
contracts with its primary client, the government owned oil
cormpany, the Company evaluated its investment in its Venezuetan
subsidiary for possible write-oft. The Company recognized a write-
off of $1.1 million ($146,000 after tax or $.03 per share) in the fourth
guarter of fiscal year 2007 to reflect the estimated reduction in the
value of the net assets of the Company's Venezuelan subsidiary. The
Company ultimately made a decision 1o close its subsidiary in
Venezuela effective as soon as possible. The cessation of business
in Venezuela will result in termination benefits for employees and
other charges. Termination costs will be estimated according to in-
country regulations and are not expected to be significant.

On January 9, 2007 the Company sold its interest in the shrimp farm
in Costa Rica to the Roozen Group for $2,500,000 in cash. When the
farm was closed in fiscal year 2003, the Company recorded an
impairment charge. The previously unrecognized foreign translation
loss in the amount of approximately $1.5 million has been
accounted for in the computation of the current year gain on sale.
There was a pretax gain on the sale of the farm of $960,131 after
deducting costs of the sale. This gain is included in the
accompanying financial statements under discontinued operations.

In June 2005, the Company signed an agreement to sell its b0%
ownership in Beijing YiYi Ecclogy and Environment Engineering Co.,
Ltd to an existing partner for $240,000. This transaction resulted in
a loss of $72,000 and was recorded in the accompanying results of
operations for fiscal year 2005.

18. Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In fiscal year 2005, the Company recognized a $2.8 million
impairment loss as a result of its decision to close its Analytical
Servicas Center (ASC) focated in Lancaster, New York. Althcugh
business operations have ceased at the ASC, any impairment losses
are shown as from “continuing operations” due te the uncertainty
that the assets could be sold within one year under current market
conditions. The Company is currently occupying approximately one
third of the laboratory space while it is marketed for sale.

19. Segment Reporting

Ecology and Environment, Inc. has three reportable segments:
consulting services, analytical laboratory services, and aguaculture.
The consulting services segment provides broad based
environmental services encompassing audits and impact
assessments, surveys, air ang water quality management,
environmental engineering, environmental infrastructure planning,
and industrial hygiene and occupational health studies to a
worldwide base of customers. The analytical laboratory provided
analytical testing services to industrial and governmental clients for
the analysis of waste, soil and sediment samples. The fish farm
{ocated in Jordan produces tilapia fish grown in a controlled
environment for markets in the Middle East. The analyiical
laboratory was closed in fiscal year 2006.

The Company evaluates segment performance and allocates
resources based on operating profit before interest income/expense
and income taxes. The accounting policies of the reportable
segments are the same as those described in the summary of
significant accounting policies. Intercompany sales are recorded at
market selling price; intercompany profits are eliminated. The
Company's reportable segments are separate and distinct business
units that offer different products. Consulting services are sold on
the bases of time charges while analytical service and aquaculture
products are sold on the basis of product unit prices.
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Repartable segments for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2007 are as follows:

Aquaculture

Consulting Analytical Continued Discontinued  Elimination Total
Total consolidated revenue $103332502 S — $ 157.168 % — % —  $103.489670
Depreciation expense 1,380,223 — — — 1,380,223
Segment profit (loss) before income
taxes and minorily interest 4,626,039 — (48,221 985,797 5,563,615
Segment assets 68,356,445 2,100,600 150,000 — 71,206,445
Expenditures for long-lived assets 1,328,481 —_ — — 1,328,481
Geographic Information: Long-Lived
Revenue'" Assets
United Siates $83,717.670 $22.912.666
Foreign Countries 19,772.000 2,235,000
" Net revenue 1s aitribuled 1o countries based on the location of the customers
Reportable segments for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2006 are as follows:
Aquaculture
Consulting Analytical Continued Discontinued  Elimination Total
Total consolidated revenue $ 98.003263 3 — $ 51,265 S - 598,054,528
Depreciation expense 1,151,439 — 12,656 — — 1,164,085
Segment profit {loss) before income
taxes and minority interest 5,291,878 — {115,863} {226,089) 4,949,926
Segment assels 66,823,384 2,100,000 198,000 31,000 — 69,152,384
Expenditures for long-lived assets 985,323 - - — — 986,323
Geographic Information: Long-Lived
Revenue' Agsets
United States $82,356,528  $22,258,838
Foreign Countries 15,698,000 1,772.000
" Nt revenun 15 attribatad (o countnes basad on 1he IociEbon of the custaimers
Reportable segments for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2005 are as follows:
Aquaculture
Consutting Analytical Continued Discontinued  Eliminatian Total
Total consolidated revenue $ 89,806,430 $ 2,085,677 $ 127,168 $ — $ (668,683) $ 81,350,613
Depreciation expense 1,169,572 318,806 12,657 — 1,201,035
Segment profit (loss) before income
taxes and minority inlerest 1.279.2089 (3,888,153) 18,789) {736,635 (2,854,368)
Segment assets 53536.535 2,100,000 314,000 27,000 55,977,536
Expenditures for long-lived assets 246,290 - - - 246,280
Geographic Information: Lang-Lived
Revenue" Assets
United States $67.937.613 $21,592.414
Foreign Countries 23,413,000 1,578,000
" Net revenue 15 atnibuied (© counties baseu on the locatan of the customers
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Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

{in thousands, except per share information)

2007 First Second Third Fourth
Revenues $24,194 $241N $ 26,544 $ 28621
Gross profit 11,243 10.706 12,100 11,985
Income {loss) from operations 1,669 1,465 1,335 {338)
Income {loss) from continuing operations before income taxes

and minority interest 1,747 1,645 1,461 {175)
Net income from continuing operations 755 B61% 480 652
Net income {loss) from discontinued operations (35} 603 — —
Net income $ 720 $ 1,222 $& 480 $ 6b2
Net income {loss) per commeon share: basic

Continuing operations ) 18 $ .15 3 A1 $ .16

Discontinued operations .01) 14 — —
Net income per comman share:. basic S 17 3 29 g Rl $ .16
Net income (loss) per commen share: diluted

Continuing operations $ 18 $ 4 3 A1 $ .16

Discontinued operations (.01} .14 — —
Net income per common share: diluted S A7 % .28 % 1 $ 16
2006 First Second Third Fourth
Revenues $ 23,525 $ 24,029 $ 27,154 $23,347
Gross profit 10.002 9,739 10,671 10,538
Income {loss) from operations 1,563 1,275 1,353 1,368
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes

and minority interest 1579 1,281 1,363 1,486
Net income from continuing operations 783 656 648 636
Net income {loss) from discontinued operations {37) (28) (28) 47)
Net income $ 748 $ 8628 $ 620 3 589
Net income (loss) per commen share: basic

Continuing operations % 19 $ 186 % 15 $ 45

Discontinued operations (.01) (.01) — (0
Net income per common share: basic % 18 % 15 % 15 % 14
Net income {loss) per commeon share: diluted

Continuing operations $ 19 $ .18 $ 15 $ 15

Discontinued operations (on {01} - {.01)
Net income per common share: diluted % 18 3 15 3 15 $ 14

Market for E & E's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The Company's Class A Common Stock is traded on the American Stock Exchange. There is no separate market for the Company's Class B
Common Stock. The foliowing table represents the range of high and low prices of the Company's Ciass A Common Stock as reported by the

American Stock Exchange for the periods indicated.

FISCAL 2007 High Low
First Quarter (cemmencing August 1, 2006 - October 28, 2006} $10.34 $9.87
Seccond Quarter (commencing October 29, 2006 - January 27, 2007) 11.81 9.96
Third Quarter [commencing January 28, 2007 - April 28, 2007) 13.05 1.0
Fourth Quarter {commencing April 29, 2007 - July 31, 2007) 13.45 12.05
FISCAL 2006 High Low
First Quarter (commencing August 1, 2005 - October 29, 2005) $9.03 $6.75
Second Quarter (commencing Octeber 30, 2005 - January 28, 2006} 9.49 7.70
- Third Quarter (commencing January 29, 2006 - April 29, 2008) 10.88 9.35
Fourth Quarter {commencing April 30, 2006 - July 31, 2006) 10.85 9.75
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As of September 30, 2007, the number of holders of record af the Company's Common Stock was 451, The Company estimates that it has a
significantly higher number of Class A Common Stock sharehclders because a substantial number of the Company's shares are held in street
name. The Company had §1.054 shares available for issuance under its 2003 Stock Award Plan on July 31, 2007.

The US. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) now requires that the Performange Graph comparing the Company's indexed fiscal year-end
share prices for five years 10 that of the exchange on which it trades and a so-called "peer group” of publicly-traded companies appear in the
Annual Report to Shareholders, instead of in the Proxy Statement as it previously required. Because E & E's business is strictly environmental
consulting, we have always had a difficult time defining a "peer group.” The Company has been unable 1o locate a securities reporting firm, e.g.
Dow Jones. that defines an environmental consulting business sector. Most publicly-traded professional services firms that provide
environmental consulting are heavily-oriented 1o engineering. with environmental consulting a minor part of their overali operations; or they are
conglomerates that operate businesses in the environmental area, but are not primarily engaged in environmenial consulting. Several of £ & E's
competitors that were primarily environmental consulting firms have been acquired by such conglomerates, while others that were publicly
traded went private.

In last year's Proxy Statement, we included five companies in our so-called "peer group™:

FY-2006 Market

Revenues Capitalization on
Company Symbol Exchange (SMM} 10/01/07 {SMM)
Arcadis NV {NY registered shares) ARCAY QTC $1,105.7 N/A
Baker, Michael Corp. BKR AMEX 7125 $426.3
CET Services CETR.OB o1C 2.3 0.8
Matrix Service Company MTRX NASDAQ 639.9 586.0
Versar, Inc. VSR AMEX 638 65.3
Ecology and Environment, Inc. EEI AMEX $98.0 $49.7

Versar is the only public corporation that E & E can identify that is most ke us in business scope and market capitalization. We have, therefore,
deleted the following companias from our “peer group”: (a) Arcadis NV, a major Dutch civil engineering firm that has acquired several American
companies and whose primary business is infrastructure development; {b) Michgel Baker Corp., that provides engineering and management
censulting services primarily to the global energy industry; {¢) CET Services, Inc., a small company that performs consulting and construction
activities related to residential housing and water/wastewater in the U.S A ; and {d) Matrix Service Co., that offers construction, repair and
mainienance services to the downstream petroleum and power industries in North America.

We anticipate that Versar, Inc., will be the sole peer used for comparison in future years, while AMEX will remain the market index. In accerdance
with SEC requirements, we are including both Versar and the former five-company “peer group” in our Performance Chart this year.

Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Total Return among Ecology and Environment, Inc.,
the AMEX Composite Index, and a Peer Group
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